**PASSED: APRIL 25, 2022** 

AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT TO NORTHERN ILLINOIS SERVICE COMPANY FOR THE DEMOLITION AND RESTORATION OF 1011-1027 W. HILLCREST DRIVE, DEKALB, ILLINOIS, IN THE AMOUNT OF \$237.883.

**WHEREAS,** the City of DeKalb (the "City") is a home rule unit of local government and may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs pursuant to Article VII, Section 6, of the Illinois Constitution of 1970; and

**WHEREAS**, the City is the owner of property located at 1011-1027 West Hillcrest Drive (the "Property"); and

**WHEREAS,** the City's corporate authorities find that it is necessary to demolish the building on the Property (the "Project") to eliminate blight and increase the supply of quality affordable housing in a Qualified Census Tract area; and

WHEREAS, on April 11, 2022, the City publicly opened bids for the Project and the lowest responsible bidder was the bid attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A (the "Bid") submitted by Northern Illinois Service Co. (the "Company") in the amount of \$237,883; and

**WHEREAS**, the City's corporate authorities find that it is in the City's best interests for the promotion of the public health, morals and welfare to approve the Bid; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DEKALB, ILLINOIS:

**SECTION 1:** The above recitals are true, correct, material, adopted and incorporated herein as Section 1 to this resolution.

**SECTION 2:** The City's corporate authorities approve the Bid and further approve, authorize, and direct the City Manager to execute an agreement with the Company to perform the Project in the amount of \$237,883.

**SECTION 3:** This resolution and each of its terms shall be the effective legislative act of a home rule municipality without regard to whether such resolution should (a) contain terms contrary to the provision of current or subsequent non-preemptive state law, or (b) legislate in a manner or regarding a matter not delegated to municipalities by state law. It is the intent of the City's corporate authorities that, to the extent that the terms of this resolution should be inconsistent with any non-preemptive state law, this resolution shall supersede state law in its jurisdiction.

**SECTION 4:** This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval as provided by law.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL of the City of DeKalb, Illinois at a Regular meeting thereof held on the 25<sup>th</sup> day of April 2022 and approved by me as Mayor on the same day. Passed by a 7-0-1 roll call vote. Aye: Morris, Larson, Smith, Perkins, McAdams, Verbic, Barnes. Nay: None. Absent: Faivre.

**COHEN BARNES, Mayor** 

Ruth A. Scott, Executive Assistant

TEST:



#### **CONTRACTOR:**

(Name, legal status and address)
Northern Illinois Service Co.

4781 Sandy Hollow Road Rockford, IL 61109

#### OWNER

(Name, legal status and address)
City of Dekalb

164 E Lincoln Hwy, DeKalb DeKalb Township, IL 60115

BOND AMOUNT: 10% of Bid Amount

Ten Percent of Bid Amount

SURETY:

# MAILING ADDRESS FOR NOTICES:

The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company

(Name, legal status and principal place of business)

Liberty Mutual Surety Claims P.O. Box 34526 Seattle, WA 98124

Bid Bond

175 Berkeley Street

Boston, MA 02116

This document has important legal consequences.
Consultation with an attorney is encouraged with respect to its completion or modification.

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.

#### **PROJECT:**

(Name, location or address, and Project number, if any)
Demolition Cleanup of 1011-1027 W Hillcrest Dr. Dekalb il 60115

The Contractor and Surety are bound to the Owner in the amount set forth above, for the payment of which the Contractor and Surety bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, as provided herein. The conditions of this Bond are such that if the Owner accepts the bid of the Contractor within the time specified in the bid documents, or within such time period as may be agreed to by the Owner and Contractor, and the Contractor either (1) enters into a contract with the Owner in accordance with the terms of such bid, and gives such bond or bonds as may be specified in the bidding or Contract Documents, with a surety admitted in the jurisdiction of the Project and otherwise acceptable to the Owner, for the faithful performance of such Contract and for the prompt payment of labor and material furnished in the prosecution thereof; or (2) pays to the Owner the difference, not to exceed the amount of this Bond, between the amount specified in said bid and such larger amount for which the Owner may in good faith contract with another party to perform the work covered by said bid, then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect. The Surety hereby waives any notice of an agreement between the Owner and Contractor to extend the time in which the Owner may accept the bid. Waiver of notice by the Surety shall not apply to any extension exceeding sixty (60) days in the aggregate beyond the time for acceptance of bids specified in the bid documents, and the Owner and Contractor shall obtain the Surety's consent for an extension beyond sixty (60) days.

If this Bond is issued in connection with a subcontractor's bid to a Contractor, the term Contractor in this Bond shall be deemed to be Subcontractor and the term Owner shall be deemed to be Contractor.

When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the location of the Project, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory or legal requirement shall be deemed deleted herefrom and provisions conforming to such statutory or other legal requirement shall be deemed incorporated herein. When so furnished, the intent is that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory bond and not as a common law bond.

Signe sealed this 11th day of April 2022 an Northern Illinois Service Co. OFFICIAL SEAL (Witness) (Seal) PAUL MUNSON NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 10/24/2025 Kiana 4. Rumpherez The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company (Surety) (Witness) Kiana M. Pumphrey (Title) Timothy A. Mikolajewski, Assistant Secretary

BID-0013344



This Power of Attorney limits the acts of those named herein, and they have no authority to bind the Company except in the manner and to the extent herein stated.

The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company

### POWER OF ATTORNEY

| Principal: Northern Illinois Service Co.                        |                          |  |
|---|--------------------------|--|
| Agency Name: RMS Insurance Services, Inc.                       | Bond Number: BID-0013344 |  |
| Obligee: City of Dekalb   |                          |  |
| Bid Bond Amount: (10% of Bid Amount ) Ten Percent of Bid Amount |                          |  |

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: that The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of New Hampshire (herein collectively called the "Company"), pursuant to and by authority herein set forth, does hereby name, constitute and appoint Timothy A. Mikolajewski in the city and state of Seattle, WA. each individually if there be more than one named, its true and lawful attorney-in-fact to make, execute, seal, acknowledge and deliver, for and on its behalf as surety and as its act and deed, any and all undertakings, bonds, recognizances and other surely obligations, in pursuance of these presents and shall be as binding upon the Companies as if they have been duly signed by the president and attested by the secretary of the Company in their own proper persons.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Power of Attorney has been subscribed by an authorized officer or official of the Company and the corporate seal of the Company has been affixed thereto this 26th day of September, 2016.



Bv:

The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company

David M. Carey, Assistant Secretary

STATE OF PENNSYLVANIA COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY

On this 26th day of September, 2016, before me personally appeared David M. Carey, who acknowledged himself to be the Assistant Secretary of The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company and that he, as such, being authorized so to do, execute the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained by signing on behalf of the corporations by himself as duly authorized officer.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed my notarial seal at King of Prussia, Pennsylvania, on the day and year first above written.



ommonwealth of Pennsylvania - Notary Sea Teresa Pastella, Notary Public Montgomery County My commission expires March 28, 2025 Commission number 1126044

Teresa Pastella, Notary Public

d and/or Power of Attorney (POA) verification inquiries, call 610-832-8240 or email HOSUR@libertymutual.com This Power of Attorney is made and executed pursuant to and by authority of the following By-law and Authorizations of The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company, which is now in full force and effect reading as follows:

ARTICLE IV - OFFICERS: Section 12. Power of Attorney.

Any officer or other official of the Corporation authorized for that purpose in writing by the Chairman or the President, and subject to such limitation as the Chairman or the President may prescribe, shall appoint such attorneys-in-fact, as may be necessary to act in behalf of the Corporation to make, execute, seal, acknowledge and deliver as surety any and all undertakings, bonds, recognizances and other surety obligations. Such attorneys-in-fact, subject to the limitations set forth in their respective powers of attorney, shall have full power to bind the Corporation by their signature and executed, such instruments shall be as binding as if signed by the President and attested to by the Secretary. Any power or authority granted to any representative or attorney-in-fact under the provisions of this article may be revoked at any time by the Board, the Chairman, the President or by the officer or officers granting such power or authority.

Certificate of Designation - The President of the Company, acting pursuant to the Bylaws of the Company, authorizes David M. Carey, Assistant Secretary to appoint such attorneys-infact as may be necessary to act on behalf of the Company to make, execute, seal, acknowledge and deliver as surety any and all undertakings, bonds, recognizances and other surety obligations.

Authorization - By unanimous consent of the Company's Board of Directors, the Company consents that facsimile or mechanically reproduced signature or electronic signatures of any assistant secretary of the Company or facsimile or mechanically reproduced or electronic seal of the Company, wherever appearing upon a certified copy of any power of attorney or bond issued by the Company in connection with surety bonds, shall be valid and binding upon the Company with the same force and effect as though manually affixed.

I, Renee C. Llewellyn, the undersigned, Assistant Secretary, of The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company do hereby certify that this power of attorney executed by said Company is in full force and effect and has not been revoked.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seals of said Company this 11th day of April



Renee C. Llewellyn, Assistant Secretary



164 East Lincoln Highway

DeKalb, Illinois 60115

815.748.2000 • cityofdekalb.com

# ADDENDEM 1 04/04/2022

# **Bid/Proposal Cover Sheet**

Name of Project: Demolition/Cleanup of 1011-1027 W. Hillcrest Drive DeKalb, IL 60115

### General Description of Project:

Demolition and cleanup of an approximately 27,620 square foot, two-story, mixed use commercial and residential building. General construction characteristics of the building include wood frame concrete block construction with brick and concrete block exterior and a tarred wooden roof with rubber overlay over a concrete slab below grade foundation. The project also requires the removal of the basement/slab/foundation, backfilling with a compacted material, and grass seeding upon completion. Basement structures are limited to the far west commercial unit of the building located at 1027 W. Hillcrest; remaining units are concrete slab in construction. Parking lot pavement remains on the lot along with concrete sidewalk areas. Parking lot and sidewalks out of the public right of way are to be removed, leveled, and restored to grass.

Website Link: <a href="https://www.cityofdekalb.com/bids.aspx">https://www.cityofdekalb.com/bids.aspx</a>

| Type of Bid:  |               |                            |
|---------------|---------------|----------------------------|
| ☐ Bid for Go  | ods           |                            |
| ☑ Bid for Ser | vices         |                            |
| ☐ Request fo  | r Qualificati | ons                        |
| ☐ Request fo  | r Proposals   |                            |
| Other:        |               | _                          |
| City Represe  | ntative:      |                            |
|               | Name:         | Andy Raih                  |
|               | E-Mail:       | andy.raih@cityofdekalb.com |
|               | Phone:        | 815 748-8111               |
| Bid Release I | Date:         | March 22, 2022             |

Last Day for Questions:

April 04, 2022

Pre-Bid Meeting:

March 30, 2022 10:00 A.M.

Location: 1216 Market St. DeKalb

IL, 60115

Site Visit:

Immediately Following Pre-Bid

Meeting

Attendance Mandatory: 

✓ Yes 

✓ No

**Question Response Date:** 

April 06, 2022

Bid Due Date:

April 11, 2022 Deadline 11:00 A.M.

All Bids must be received at the City of DeKalb, Public Works Department, Attn. April Beeman, 1216 Market Street, DeKalb, Illinois, 60115 no later than 11:00 A.M. on April 11, 2022.

Required Security: See Section 2.13 of the Proposal.

Required Insurance: See applicable terms of Exhibit E, Independent Contractor Agreement, and Section 2.09 of the Contract Documents (and subsections).

All persons desiring to submit a bid under these Contract Documents must contact the City of DeKalb and provide an email address at which notices can be sent and received by the proposed Bidder or Contractor. This address will be used for official communications from the City, including pre-bid communications.

# **Legal Notice-Invitation to Bid**

# Legal Notice-Invitation to Bid

The City of DeKalb, IL will accept sealed bids for the Demolition and Cleanup of 1011-1027 W Hillcrest Drive DeKalb, IL 60115

Specifications and all Contract Documents are available on-line on the City of DeKalb's web page at <a href="www.cityofdekalb.com">www.cityofdekalb.com</a> under Quick Links/Bids & RFPs. They may also be obtained from the City of DeKalb Public Works Department, Attn: April Beeman, 1216 Market Street, DeKalb, Illinois, 60115. Sealed bids will be received at the above address until April 11, 2022, at 11:00 A.M. All bids will be publicly opened immediately thereafter. A mandatory pre-bid meeting will be held on March 30, 2022, at 10:00 A.M. at the above-described location; said meeting is mandatory as indicated in the bid documents.

# **Table of Contents**

| Bid/Proposal Cover Sheet1  |
|--|
| Legal Notice- Invitation to Bid3                                       |
| Equal Employment Opportunity Clause7                                   |
| Section 1: Standard Conditions8  |
| 1.00 General Bid Notes:8   |
| 1.01 Contract Documents:9  |
| 1.02 Interpretation of Contract Documents:9                            |
| 1.03 Electronic Bid Documents:9  |
| 1.04 Submittal of Bid:11   |
| 1.04.01 Pre-bid Meeting:11   |
| 1.05 Withdrawal of Bid:11  |
| 1.06 Bidder's Qualifications:11  |
| 1.07 Preparation of Bid:12   |
| 1.08 Compliance with Laws:12   |
| 1.09 Alternate to Bids:  |
| 1.10 Form of Contract:   |
| 1.11 Freedom of Information Act (FOIA):                                |
| 1.12 Bid Review:   |
| 1.13 Bid Results:  |
| 1.13.01 Bid Protest:   |
| 1.14 Delivery:14   |
| 1.15 Inspections:  |
| 1.16 Pricing:  |
| Section 2: General Supplemental Additional Conditions15                |
| 2.01 Scope of Work:  |
| 2.02 Licensing and Permits:15  |
| 2.03 Period of Unemployment:15   |
| 2.04 Prevailing Wage:15  |
| 2.04.01 Certified Payroll Records:16                                   |
| 2.05 Toxic Substance:  |
| 2.06 Guarantees, Warranties, Manuals:16                                |
| 2.07 Termination of Contract:17  |
| 2.08 Indemnification and Hold Harmless Agreement (Contractual or Other |
| Liability):  |
| 2.09 Insurance:18  |
| 2.09.01 Insurance Rating:  |
| 2.09.02 Special Requirement:   |
| 2.09.03 Provision of Insurance:20                                      |
| 2.10 Subcontractors:20   |
| 2.11 Change Orders:20  |
| 2.11.01 Legal Authority to Bind:21                                     |

| 2.12 Failure to Execute:                          |                |
|---|----------------|
| 2.13 Bid Security:                                | <del></del> 21 |
| 2.14 Performance Security:                        | 22             |
| 2.14.01 Letter of Credit - required content:      |                |
| 2.15 Waiver of Lien:                              | 23             |
| Section 3: Invitation for Bid                     | .23            |
| 3.01 Intent:                                      |                |
| 3.02 Scope:                                       |                |
| 3.03 Qualifications:                              | 24             |
| 3.03.01 Professional Services Selection Act:      | 25             |
| 3.04 Contract Management:                         |                |
| 3.05 Protection of Public and Private Property:   |                |
| 3.06 Concurrent Operations:                       |                |
| 3.07 Licenses and Permits:                        | 25             |
| 3.08 Severability:                                | 26             |
| 3.09 Accidents:                                   | 26             |
| 3.10 Sexual Harassment:                           | 26             |
| 3.11 Blood borne Pathogens Exposure Control Plan: |                |
| 3.12 Term of Contract:                            | 26             |
| 3.13 References:                                  | 27             |
| 3.14 Special and Unforeseen Work:                 | 27             |
| 3.15 Exceptions:                                  |                |
| 3.16 Communications:                              |                |
| 3.17 Security and Access:                         |                |
| 3.18 Hours of Work:                               | 28             |
| 3.19 Handling of Waste:                           |                |
| 3.20 Work Crew Supervision:                       |                |
| 3.21 Contractor's Personnel:                      |                |
| 3.21.01 Background Investigation:                 |                |
| Section 4: Materials and Equipment                | 30             |
| 4.01 City to Furnish:                             | . 30           |
| 4.02 Contractor to Furnish:                       | 30             |
| 4.03 Standards and Workmanship:                   |                |
| 4.03.01 Restrictive or Ambiguous Specifications:  |                |
| Section: 5: Performance and Payment               |                |
| 5.01 Disputes:                                    | . 31           |
| 5.02 Payment:                                     |                |
| 5.02.01 Taxes:                                    |                |
| 5.03 Penalties:                                   |                |
| Exhibit A: Detailed Cost Sheet                    |                |
| Exhibit B: Bid Sheet                              |                |
| Evhibit D. Form of Agrooment                      | 24             |
| Exhibit D: Form of Agreement                      |                |
| Independent Contractor Agreement for Services     | 38             |

# # H

3 × 1

| Exhibit E: Insurance Requirements:              | 48         |
|---|------------|
| Exhibit F: Description of "the Work"            | .50        |
| Exhibit G: Project Checklist                    | 55         |
| Exhibit H: Subcontractor Listing                | 56         |
| Exhibit I: City Punchlist and Acceptance Notice | <u>.57</u> |
| Exhibit I: Form of Bid Addendum                 |            |

# **Equal Employment Opportunity Clause**

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE required by the Illinois Fair Employment Practices Commission as a material term of all public contracts.

During the performance of this contract, the Contractor agrees as follows:

- 1. That it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, or ancestry; and further, that it will examine all job classifications to determine if minority persons or women are underutilized and will take appropriate affirmative action to rectify any such underutilization.
- 2. That, if it hires additional employees in order to perform this contract, or any portion hereof, it will determine the availability (in accordance with the Commission's Rules and Regulations for Public Contracts) of minorities and women in the area(s) from which it may reasonably recruit, and it will hire for each job classification for which employees are hired in such a way that minorities and women are not underutilized.
- 3. That, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by it or on its behalf, it will state that all applicants will be afforded equal opportunity without discrimination because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, or ancestry.
- 4. That it will send to each labor organization or representative of workers with which it has or is bound by a collective bargaining or other agreement or understanding, a notice advising such labor organization or representative of the contractor's obligations under the Illinois Fair Employment Practices Act and the Commission's Rules and Regulations for Public Contracts. If any such labor organization or representative fails or refuses to cooperate with the contractor in its efforts to comply with such Act and Rules and Regulations the contractor will promptly so notify the Illinois Fair Employment Practices Commission and the contracting agency and will recruit employees from other sources when necessary to fulfill its obligations, there under.
- 5. That it will submit reports as required by the Illinois Fair Employment Practices Commission's Rules and Regulations for Public Contracts, furnish all relevant information as may from time to time be requested by the Commission or the contracting agency, and in all respects comply with the Illinois Fair Employment Practices Act and the Commission's Rules and Regulations for Public Contracts.
- 6. That it will permit access to all relevant books, records, accounts, and work sites by personnel of the contracting agency and the Illinois Fair Employment Practices Commission for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with the Illinois

Fair Employment Practices Act and the Commission's Rules and Regulations for Public Contracts.

7. That it will include verbatim or by reference the provisions of paragraphs 1 through 7 of this clause in every performance subcontract as defined in Section 2.10 (b) of the Commission's Rules and Regulations for Public Contracts so that such provision will be binding upon every such subcontractor; and that it will also include the provisions of paragraphs 1,5, 6, and 7 in every supply subcontract as defined in Section 2.10(a) of the Commission's Rules and Regulations for Public Contracts so that such provisions will be binding upon every such subcontractor. In the same manner as with other provisions of this contract, the contractor will be liable for compliance with applicable provisions of this clause by all its subcontractors; and further it will promptly notify the contracting agency and the Illinois Fair Employment Practices Commission in the event any subcontractor fails or refuses to comply therewith. In addition, no contractor will utilize any subcontractor declared by the Commission to be non-responsible and therefore ineligible for contracts or subcontracts with the State of Illinois or any of its political subdivisions or municipal corporations.

The City of DeKalb does not discriminate on the basis of handicapped status in admission or access to, or treatment or employment in, its programs and activities.

### **Section 1: Standard Conditions**

#### 1.00 General Bid Notes:

The City Council of the City of DeKalb reserves the right to accept or reject any and all bids, to waive any technicalities, discrepancies, or information in the bids, or to waive competitive bidding and negotiate directly with one or more contractors. The City also reserves the right to divide the contract into multiple agreements and to have multiple parties' complete separate components of the required work. The City of DeKalb does not discriminate in admission, access to, treatment, or employment in its programs and activities.

General questions regarding the Legal Notice or the Bid Specifications shall be directed to the City's Representative at the contact information provided on the Bid Cover Sheet. **All detailed questions concerning the actual bid specification are to be forwarded in writing.** 

Following bid opening, review, and the City's receipt of an award recommendation, pending contract awards will be posted on the City of DeKalb's web site.

Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting are requested

to contact the Public Works Office at 815-748-2040 at least one (1) week prior to this public meeting if possible.

All costs incurred in the preparation, submission and/or presentation of any proposal including any Bidder's travel or personal expenses shall be the sole responsibility of the Bidder and will not be reimbursed by the City.

ALL RESPONDING BIDDERS ARE REQUIRED TO SUBMIT ALL PAGES OF THIS BID PACKAGE, INCLUDING ALL ATTACHMENTS (AND ANY CONTRACTOR-GENERATED SUPPLEMENTS THERETO), IN ORDER TO SUBMIT A VALID BID.

All persons desiring to submit a bid under these Contract Documents must contact the City of DeKalb and provide an email address at which notices can be sent and received by the proposed Bidder or Contractor. This address will be used for official communications from the City, including pre-bid communications.

### 1.01 Contract Documents:

Any drawings, plans, standard conditions, special conditions, supplemental additional conditions, specifications, bid notice, bid sheet, and addendum, if any, as specified herein shall form the "Contract Documents." For the purpose of this bid, the word "City" shall refer to the City of DeKalb, and the word "Bidder" or "Contractor" shall refer to any person, company, or entity submitting a bid. Any work shown or described in one of the documents shall be construed as if described in all the documents. For purposes of any provision in here requiring the defense, indemnity or insuring of the City, such reference shall include the City, its employees, officers, elected and appointed officials, attorneys, contractors, and subcontractors. The "City Representative" shall be the person so indicated on the Bid/Proposal Cover Sheet.

### 1.02 Interpretation of Contract Documents:

Each request for interpretation of the Contract Documents shall be made in writing addressed to the City Representative and shall be received at least five (5) business days prior to the pre-bid meeting. Interpretations and supplemental instructions will be the form of written addenda to the Contract Documents. In the event that there is no pre-bid meeting, requests for information must be received by the City Representative at least ten days prior to bid opening. The City reserves the right to determine what constitutes a material variation from the terms of these Contract Documents, and to waive variations deemed immaterial, in its sole discretion.

#### 1.03 Electronic Bid Documents:

Bidders that download PDF documents from the City of DeKalb's internet web page must immediately notify the City Representative via e-mail as outlined on the Cover Sheet and attend the pre-bid meeting (if marked as mandatory) if they intend to submit a response to the bid documents. This step is necessary to establish a communication link between the City and the Bidder so that any addenda or other relevant information may be transmitted

properly. The Bidder, not the City, is responsible for obtaining any addenda to the original specification when the Bidder chooses the option of downloading bid or proposal files. Addenda and other relevant information will be posted on the City of DeKalb web page. Bidders must provide an email address which can be used by the City to send bid addenda

or other official communications. All Bidders must sign off and acknowledge receipt of all bid addenda. The form of Bid Addenda is attached hereto as Exhibit J.

#### 1.04 Submittal of Bid:

Bids must be submitted to the City of DeKalb Public Works Department, Attn. April Beeman, 1216 Market Street, DeKalb, Illinois, 60115 no later than April 11, 2022, at 11:00 A.M. Bids arriving after the specified time will not be accepted, even in cases of delay by train. Bids will not be accepted at any other location or by any other City personnel. Any bids erroneously accepted at any other location or by other City personnel shall be returned unopened. Mailed bids which are delivered after the specified hour will not be accepted regardless of postmarked time on the envelope. Bidders should carefully consider all bid delivery options (US Postal Service, UPS, Federal Express, Emery Express, private delivery service, etc.) and select a method that will successfully deliver their bid by the required time and date. Bids shall be submitted in sealed envelopes carrying the following information: Bidder's name, address, subject matter, and document number of bid as indicated in the specification, and designated date and time of the bid opening. All bids must be clearly marked at the top of each side of the envelope: "Official Bid: Do Not Open." Bids will only be accepted by delivery or US mail; bids will not be accepted by facsimile, e-mail, internet, telephone, or telegraphic means. All times are based upon the official time in the City of DeKalb, Central Standard Time, or Central Standard Daylight Time (whichever applies at the time of bid).

### 1.04.01 Pre-bid Meeting:

A pre-bid meeting will be held at the DeKalb Public Works Department, 1216 Market Street, DeKalb, IL, at the date and time indicated on the Bid Cover Sheet for the purpose of familiarizing Bidders with the project and answering questions. Bidders shall be completely familiar with the entire bid specification and all Contract Documents prior to attending this meeting and shall come prepared to ask questions.

Attendance at the pre-bid meeting is not mandatory unless indicated as Attendance Required on the Bid Cover Sheet. Strong consideration will be given to the Contractor's clear understanding and familiarity with the City's needs in determining an award of Contract.

#### 1.05 Withdrawal of Bid:

Bidders may withdraw or cancel their bid, in written form, at any time prior to the advertised bid opening time. Bidders must submit a written request to withdraw their bid, which must be received by the City, at the stated location for bid submission, *prior to bid opening*.

#### 1.06 Bidder's Qualifications:

No award will be made to any Bidder who cannot satisfy to the City that they have sufficient ability and experience in this class of work, as well as sufficient capital and equipment to do the job and complete the work successfully within the time named (i.e., responsible). The City's decision or judgment on these matters shall be final, conclusive, and binding. The City may make such investigations as it deems necessary. The Bidder shall furnish to the City, under oath if so required, all information and data the City may request for the purpose of investigation.

### 1.07 Preparation of Bid:

The Bidder's submittal shall include the completed *Bid Sheet* and *Detailed Bid Sheet* found in the Contract Documents. The City will strictly hold the Bidder to the terms of the bid. The bid must be executed by a person having the legal right and authority to bind the Bidder.

### 1.08 Compliance with Laws:

The Bidder shall at all times observe and conform to all laws, ordinances, and regulations of the Federal, State, and local governments, which may in any manner affect the preparation of bids or the performance of the contract. In addition, the Bid shall be subject to all applicable City of DeKalb purchasing policies and ordinances, including but not limited to the Local Preference Ordinance (City Code Section 54.14). A copy of the local preference ordinance is available at the City's website:

http://www.cityofdekalb.com/CityClerk/Municipal\_Code.htm

### 1.09 Alternate to Bids:

Any reference in these specifications to manufacturer's name, trade name, or catalog number (unless otherwise specified) is intended as a standard only. The City's written decision of approval or disapproval of a proposed substitution shall be final.

Alternate bids will be considered only if received at the time stated for receipt of the bids. Submit alternate bids in a sealed envelope and identify the envelope as required for all bids, except that the phrase **Alternate Bid** shall be used. Bidders are cautioned that, if an alternate bid(s) involves an increase in the *Bid Sum*, the *Bid Deposit*, **if required**, shall be ample or be increased to cover the alternate *Bid Sum* or the entire bid may be rejected. Alternate bids should only be submitted if the proposal is believed in good faith to be equal in quality to the requirements specified by the City. The City reserves the right to rule upon a specification deviation or alternate bid in the manner as best befits the City, and to accept an alternate bid deemed adequate without rebidding or waiver of bid.

#### 1.10 Form of Contract:

The form of contract between the City and the successful Bidder will be in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D.

### 1.11 Freedom of Information Act (FOIA):

The City is required by Public Act 96-542 to comply with freedom of information requests (FOIA) within five (5) business days of a record request. All contractors used by the City may be in possession of records covered by this act and therefore will be required to provide the City with those records upon request and within the time frame of the Act.

### 1.12 Bid Review:

The City reserves the right to reject any or all bids, to waive any irregularities or disregard any informality in the bids and bidding, and/or to waive competitive bidding and negotiate with one or more bidders or non-bidders directly when, in its opinion, the best interest of the City will be served by such action. Furthermore, the City reserves the right to award each item to a different

Bidder, or all items to a single Bidder unless otherwise noted on the *Bid Sheet*. The City may determine as follows: 1) an equal or alternative is a satisfactory substitute; 2) an early delivery date is entitled to more consideration than price; 3) an early delivery date is to be disregarded because of the reputation of the Bidder for not meeting delivery dates; 4) a Bidder is not a responsible Bidder; and 5) what exceptions or deviations from written specifications will be accepted.

No bid will be accepted from, or contract awarded to any person, firm, or corporation that is in arrears or is in default to the City upon any debt or contract, or that is a defaulter, as surety or otherwise, upon any obligation to the City, or had failed to perform faithfully any previous contract with the City.

Bidders are required, if requested to do so, to affect a demonstration of the item/service being bid if the City feels it has insufficient knowledge of the item/service operations or performance capability. Such demonstration shall be at a site which is most convenient and agreeable to the affected City personnel. If the bid specifications require the submission of samples, such samples shall be submitted to the City at no cost, at or prior to the deadline for submitting bids. All samples become the property of the City upon submission.

#### 1.13 Bid Results:

Following the bid opening and review period, pending contract awards will be posted on the City's Internet website under the **Bids** web page. Bid tabulations posted on-line represent "as read" submittals at time of the bid opening. They do not represent contract award.

#### **1.13.01 Bid Protest:**

Firms wishing to protest bids or awards should notify the City Representative in writing within three (3) days after the bid opening. This notification should include the bid number, the name of the firm protesting, and a detailed description as to why the firm is protesting the bid. The City Representative shall respond to said protest within seven (7) calendar days. A successful protest may result in the reversal of a previously awarded bid. If the firm wishes to appeal the determination of the City Representative, it may provide a written notice to the City Manager within two (2) business days of the date of release of the City Representative's decision; the City Manager shall thereafter review and decide the protest, and the decision of the City Manager shall be final.

### 1.14 Delivery:

Where the bid involves the sale or delivery of materials or goods, all materials shipped to the City must be shipped F.O.B. delivered to the designated location specified in the description of Work, DeKalb, Illinois. If special delivery terms are required (e.g., forklift, ramp, etc.), the Bidder is responsible for providing the same unless otherwise noted. The City accepts no responsibility for the condition of any merchandise purchased prior to acceptance by City personnel. The City reserves the right to refuse acceptance of delivered merchandise that differs from the specifications in the invitation to bid or as otherwise permitted by Illinois law.

### 1.15 Inspections:

The City shall have the right to inspect any materials, components, equipment, supplies, services, or completed work specified herein. Any of said items not complying with these specifications are subject to rejection at the option of the City. Any items rejected shall be removed from the premises of the City and/or replaced at the entire expense of the successful Bidder.

### 1.16 Pricing:

For bids involving the sale of materials or supplies, unit prices shall be shown for each unit on which there is a bid and shall be inclusive of all charges necessary to comply with the terms and conditions of this bid (i.e., FOB DeKalb at the specified location). All prices shall be stated in U.S. dollars. Unit prices shall not include any local, state, or federal taxes. In the case of a mistake in the extension of price, unit prices shall govern. All prices must be typewritten or written in ink; no erasures are permitted. Mistakes must be crossed out and corrections typewritten or written in ink adjacent thereto and initialed in ink by the party signing the bid.

### 1.16.1 Format of Pricing Submission:

Bidders are requested to submit individual pricing for each Project Task (demolition of structure, demolition of parking lot), and also to submit a package price for all work contemplated by these bid specifications. The City reserves the right to award all or some part of this work to individual bidders (e.g., the City may select different contractors to perform each Project Task) or may select a single bidder to perform all Project Tasks. The City also reserves the right to waive competitive bidding and award a contract for the performance of all or some portion of the project. The City also reserves the right to only complete certain portions of the project (e.g., asbestos mitigation and demolition of the structure, without removal of the parking lot). Submission of a bid constitutes acceptance of these specifications.

# Section 2: General Supplemental Additional Conditions

### 2.01 Scope of Work:

The Bidder shall supply all required supervision, skilled labor, transportation, new materials, apparatus, and tools necessary for the entire and proper completion of the Work. The Work is as described on the attached Exhibit F, and may consist of the provision of services, professional services, materials, supplies, equipment, or some combination thereof ("the Work"). The Bidder shall supply, maintain, and remove all equipment for the performance of the work and be responsible for the safe, proper, and lawful construction, maintenance, and use of the same. This work shall be completed to the satisfaction of the City. The Bidder shall provide adequate protection of the job site to protect the general public from any injury as a result of the job. The Bidder shall provide all safeguards and suitable barricades to protect public and adjacent property. The City is not responsible

for site safety. The Bidder is solely and exclusively responsible for construction means, methods, technologies, and site safety. The Bidder is responsible for identifying whether the bid proposal involves the provision of labor, materials, professional services, or a combination thereof, and for complying with the appropriate components of these Contract Documents. Where

the Work requires the provision of supplies or goods, all such goods shall be *new*, *unused materials*, unless the Work expressly indicates that recycled or used materials may be utilized.

### 2.02 Licensing and Permits:

The successful Bidder and their subcontractor(s) must be licensed with the City and shall obtain all required permits prior to the start of any component of the Work. The City will waive applicable City permit fees for the specific contract.

### 2.03 Period of Unemployment:

For any project involving labor or services which is governed by 30 ILCS 570 Employment of Illinois Workers on Public Works Act, such Act must be adhered to in entirety by the awarded Contractor. This act requires the use of Illinois workers on Public Works projects during periods of excess unemployment, which means any month immediately following 2 consecutive calendar months during which the level of unemployment in the State of Illinois has exceeded 5% as measured by the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics in its monthly publication of employment and unemployment figures.

### 2.04 Prevailing Wage:

For any work subject to the requirements of the Prevailing Wage Act, 820 ILCS 130/0.01, et. seq., the successful Bidder is required to fully comply with the Act and to provide certified payroll records in compliance with the Act to the City at or before the time of requesting any payment for this project. The failure to comply with Prevailing Wage where required shall subject a bidder to the forfeit of any proceeds otherwise earned; the City will not process payment requests that are not in compliance with the Prevailing Wage Act. Additionally, separate from any other indemnification or insurance obligation in this Agreement, the successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend (with the City having exclusive choice of legal counsel) and hold harmless the City from any and all claims, demands, liabilities or other expenses in any way relating to the compliance or non-compliance with the Prevailing Wage Act.

#### 2.04.01 Certified Payroll Records:

Certified payroll records shall consist of a complete copy of the following records: a list of all laborers, mechanics and other workers employed to perform work hereunder. The records shall include the following information for each worker: name, address, telephone number, classification or classifications, the hourly wages paid in each pay period, the number of hours worked each day, and the starting and ending times of work each day, along with such other information which may be required by law. The certified payroll shall be accompanied by a statement signed and sworn to by the Contractor which avers that: 1) the certified payroll record is true and accurate; 2) the hourly rate paid to each worker is not less than the general rate of prevailing wage as required by the Act; and 3) the Contractor is aware that filing a certified payroll known to be false is a Class B Misdemeanor.

#### 2.05 Toxic Substance:

Prior to delivery of any material which is caustic, corrosive, flammable, or dangerous to handle, the supplier will provide written directions as to methods of handling such products, as well as

the antidote or neutralizing material required for its first aid. (Materials Safety Data Sheet). The successful Bidder is responsible for complying with all applicable legal regulations or recommended handling procedures.

#### 2.06 Guarantees, Warranties, Manuals:

All guarantees and warranties required shall be furnished by the Bidder and shall be delivered to the City before final payment on the contract is issued. All products provided shall be provided with any available manuals, brochures, or other instructions. The Contractor shall be responsible for providing the City with training in accordance with the requirements of the description of the Work. Any required training shall be provided at no additional cost. For any Work involving the sale of goods or materials, the Contractor shall be required to provide product manuals. Manuals shall be as detailed as possible outlining all necessary operating and servicing instructions for any equipment delivered, including components. In addition, for any Work involving the sale of vehicles, equipment, mechanical devices, tools or computerized devices, technical shop manuals containing illustrated parts lists and a complete set of technician repair manuals for the entire unit including wiring diagrams and hydraulic schematics supplied with the equipment shall be provided. These materials can be provided in paper manuals or in electronic format (on DVD in PDF format). Any electronic documents required or submitted (e.g., as-builts, GPS information, or other data) shall be submitted in a format acceptable to the City Representative in his or her sole discretion.

All products supplied under this Contract shall carry the manufacturers' standard warranty. The Contractor shall guarantee the Work to be free from defects of any nature for a period of one year from and after the final acceptance and payment for the Work by the City, and the Bidder shall maintain said Work and shall make all needed repairs and/or replacements during this one year period which in the judgment of the City Representative may be necessary to ensure the delivery of the Work to the City in first-class condition and in full conformity with the plans and specifications therefore, at the expiration of the guaranty period. The City shall identify the date of completion of the project, which shall serve as the start-date for the warranty. The following provisions only apply if checked:

The Contractor is required to post a maintenance bond equal to ten percent of the project cost, for the term of the one-year warranty.

The Contractor shall be subject to ten percent (10%) retention upon successful conclusion of the project, for the term of the one-year warranty.

#### 2.07 Termination of Contract:

The City reserves the right to terminate in whole or any part of this contract, upon written notice to the Bidder, in the event of any default by the Bidder. Default is defined as failure of the Bidder to perform any of the provisions of this contract in strict accordance with its terms or failure to make sufficient progress so as to endanger performance of this contract in accordance with the City's expectations for completion or any expressed timeline for the same. In the event of default and termination, the City may procure, upon such terms and in such a manner as the City may deem appropriate, supplies, or services similar to those terminated.

The Bidder shall be liable for any excess costs or replacement costs for such similar supplies or service unless evidence is submitted to the City that, in the sole opinion of the City, clearly proves that failure to perform the contract was due to causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Bidder.

2.08 Indemnification and Hold Harmless Agreement (Contractual or Other Liability):

The Bidder agrees to indemnify and save harmless the City, including its elected or appointed officials, employees, attorneys and agents (collectively, the "City Indemnitees") against any and all claims, loss damage, injury, liability, and court costs and attorney's fees incident thereto, including any claims made by employees of the Bidder or any of their subcontractors, as well as all other persons, resulting directly or indirectly from the work covered by this contract or the equipment used in connection therewith. It is understood that this agreement shall apply to any and all such claims whether resulting from the negligence or the intentional acts of the Bidder, the Bidder's employees, contractors or subcontractors, the City, or City Indemnitees or otherwise, with the single exception of any claim, damage, loss, or expense arising solely out of the intentional misconduct of the City or City Indemnitees. The Bidder is solely responsible for determining the accuracy and validity of any information provided to the Bidder by the City or its representatives. This indemnification shall apply to the fullest extent of the law, and in the event that any provision hereof is determined to be unenforceable, the indemnification obligations shall be severable and the fullest extent of indemnification that may lawfully apply shall remain in full force and effect.

This indemnification shall include any claims arising out of the erection, construction, placement or operation of any scaffold, hoist, crane, stay, ladders, support, or other mechanical contrivance in connection with such work including but not limited to losses, claims, damages, and expenses arising pursuant to claims asserted against the City pursuant to theories premised upon Section 414 or Section 343 of the Restatement (Second) of Torts. This indemnification shall not be limited in any way by limitations on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Contractor under Workers' Compensation Acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts, and serves as an express agreement to waive the protection of *Kotecki v. Cyclops Welding Corp*, 146 Ill.2d 155 (1991) in Illinois.

#### 2.09 Insurance:

The insurance requirements outlined in these Contract Documents are applicable to any Work involving the performance of any services; these insurance provisions do not apply to any Work that consists solely of the sale of materials to the City without any corresponding labor or service. The Bidder will provide certificates of insurance evidencing the types and limits of insurance contemplated by the Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit E. The certificates of insurance will specifically address each of the requirements noted below. Each insurance company shall be in a form and from an issuer acceptable to the City. The General Liability coverage shall name the City of DeKalb as additional primary insured, without right of subrogation. All insurance noted below is primary and in no event will be considered contributory to any insurance purchased by the City. All insurance noted below will not be canceled, reduced, or materially changed without providing the City thirty (30) days advance notice, via certified mail. A certificate of insurance shall be

provided to the City prior to the time at which any invoice or request for payment is submitted to the City.

EACH CERTIFICATE OF LIABILTY INSURANCE SHALL REFERENCE THE SPECIFIC BID NUMBER AND PROJECT DESCRIPTION IN THE ADDITIONAL INSURED FIELD, AND MUST BE PROVIDED DIRECTLY TO THE CITY REPRESENTATIVE.

Any and all deductibles or other forms of retention are the responsibility of the Contractor. All deductibles or other forms of retention are subject to the approval of the City. Contractor will disclose to the City in writing the amounts of any deductible or self-insured retentions on the insurance required under this contract. All deductibles or self-insured retention shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor. At the option of the City and at no additional cost to the City, the Contractor shall either: a) the Contractor shall eliminate or reduce the deductibles/retention amounts as it relates to the City or City Indemnitees; or b) procure a bond or letter of credit guaranteeing the payment of such amounts.

Contractor waives any right of subrogation it may have or later acquire against the City. Additionally, with regard to the Contractor's obligations to defend, indemnify, insure, and hold harmless the City, to the extent of any claim, offset or special defense afforded to the Contractor by virtue of the Illinois Worker's Compensation Act or any other applicable law or statute, the Contractor acknowledges that its obligation to defend, indemnify, insure, and hold harmless the City shall not be limited or abrogated by said claim, offset or defense. Any provision of these specifications requiring the Contractor to defend the City shall be read to include the City having choice of legal counsel, at Contractor's expense, for purposes of fulfilling the defense obligation. Any language in these Contract Documents regarding the Contractor's obligation to indemnify the City or to ensure the City shall be read jointly, such that a waiver of subrogation or waiver of defense appearing in the Indemnification provisions shall also apply to the Insurance provisions. All such insurance or indemnification provisions shall also be read to require indemnification and insurance to be provided for the benefit of the City and City Indemnitees (as indemnified parties and as additional insureds).

Prior to receipt of a purchase order and start of work, the City Finance Department must receive and approve Certificates of Insurance, W9 form and endorsements for all Contractors' employees who will be using their personal vehicle for transportation for work-related purposes during the workday. It will be the responsibility of the Contractor to provide renewal certificates for the same, and any new employees added to the City contract, throughout the course of the contract. These forms can be sent to City of DeKalb Finance Department, Attn. Accounts Payable/Purchasing Agent, 164 W Lincoln Hwy, DeKalb, Illinois, 60115.

### 2.09.01 Insurance Rating:

All insurance policies required by this contract shall be underwritten by insurance companies with a minimum A. M. Best rating of B++ or better. In the event that the Contractor or any Subcontractor fails to procure or maintain any insurance required by the Contract Documents, the

City may, at its option, purchase such coverage and deduct the cost thereof from any monies due to the Contractor or Subcontractor, or withhold funds in an amount sufficient to protect the City, or terminate this Agreement pursuant to its terms.

### 2.09.02 Special Requirement:

If the Bidder is an architectural firm or engineering firm, or if the Work under the Contract Documents includes design, consultation, or any other professional services, said Bidder shall file a certificate of insurance for professional liability, errors and omissions coverage subject to final acceptance by the City of said coverage. Professional liability insurance is not required to name the City as additional primary insured. Such insurance shall be provided on an occurrence basis, or if provided on a claims-made basis shall have a retrospective date prior to the start of Work.

### 2.09.03 Provision of Insurance:

The Bidder shall not commence Work under this contract until the Bidder has obtained all insurance required under this section and such insurance has been approved by the City, nor shall Bidder allow any subcontractor to commence work on their subcontract until the same insurance has been obtained by the subcontractor. The Bidder and their subcontractor(s) shall maintain all insurance required under these Contract Documents for not less than two (2) years after completion of this contract. The City shall not be obligated to review such certificates or other evidence of insurance, or to advise Contractor or Subcontractor of any deficiencies in such documents, and receipt thereof shall not relieve the Contractor or Subcontractor from, nor be deemed a waiver of the right to enforce the terms of the obligations hereunder. The City shall have the right to examine any policy required and evidenced on the Certificate of Insurance.

Additionally, and supplemental to the indemnification outlined above, the successful Bidder shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City from any and all claims arising out of the payment or real or alleged failure to pay any subcontractor or materialman.

### 2.10 Subcontractors:

Use of any subcontractors for performance of any component of this Agreement requires the City's express, written pre-approval prior to undertaking any services, as contemplated in the terms of these specifications. Additionally, without regard to such pre-approval, any contractor, subcontractor, or materialman providing services or materials relating to these specifications shall expressly be required to comply with all of the terms of these specifications. The prime contractor or successful Bidder holding the agreement resulting from these specifications shall be responsible for so confirming, and shall indemnify, defend, and hold the City harmless from any failure to comply with these specifications by any subcontractor. Moreover, the failure to perform or default of any subcontractor shall be held and applied against the prime contractor under which the subcontractor is working, as if the prime contractor itself had failed to perform or had defaulted.

### 2.11 Change Orders:

After the contract award, changes in or additions to the work and/or a change in the amount of money to be paid to the Bidder must be the result of an approved change order first ordered by the City Representative.

For any contract which is subject to the Public Works Contract Change Order Act, 50 ILCS 525/1, et. seq., the City requires the successful contractor verify any change order request received from a subcontractor will not exceed 49% of the original subcontract amount. Any needed change order that will increase the subcontract by 50% or more will require opening up that portion of the work to competitive bidding.

The contract price is and must include a "not to exceed" price. Any time the Contractor believes additional work is necessary or requested and the not to exceed price would increase, any change or addition shall require the pre-approval of the City. Unless a change order is approved, in writing, by the City Representative and/or City Manager and/or City Council, the contract price shall not be exceeded.

### 2.11.01 Legal Authority to Bind:

The City shall not be bound by the unauthorized action of any of its agents or representatives. Any bidder and the Contractor are responsible for determining whether any person purporting to act on behalf of or to bind the City has the actual authority to do so, prior to relying upon any such statement or claimed authorization.

#### 2.12 Failure to Execute:

Failure to execute the contract shall, at the option of the City, constitute a breach of the agreement made by acceptance of the bid, and the City shall be entitled to forfeiture of the certified check, bank draft, or Bid Bond accompanying the bid that is required, not as a penalty, but as liquidated damages. In the event of failure of a Bidder to whom an award of contract has been made, to execute the contract and furnish a Performance Bond within five (5) days after notification of award, such award may be nullified, and an award may be made to the next lowest responsive and responsible Bidder approved by the City. Any bidder who seeks any modification of the Contract Documents or of the Agreement is required to notify the City of the same by submitting an alternate bid. Any bidder who submits a bid without identifying any changes in the Contract Documents or the Agreement may be bound to the Contract Documents and the Agreement, without revision, at the City's discretion.

### 2.13 Bid Security:

Unless this section is completely crossed out, each bid shall be accompanied by a bid security in the amount of 10% of the total amount bid. Bid security shall be in the form of a certified check or cashier's check, drawn on a responsible bank doing business in the United States and made payable to the City of DeKalb, or an original Bid Bond (*may NOT be a copy or facsimile*) by a surety company which is satisfactory to the City and is qualified to do business in Illinois. Bids not accompanied by a bid security will be rejected. The bid security of the <u>unsuccessful Bidders</u> (if in the form of a certified check or cashier's check) will be returned after the contract is awarded,

signed and the performance security has been provided, or earlier, if the City does not deem it necessary to retain the Bid Security. The bid security of the accepted Bidder, (if in the form of a certified check or cashier's check) will be returned either upon execution of a contract and submittal of a performance bond, if required by the specifications or, where no performance bond is required, when, in the City's estimation, the contract has been satisfactorily completed and a final inspection has been satisfactorily completed. The final inspection shall occur within thirty (30) days of the date of completion/delivery. When the bid security is submitted in the form of a bid bond, the bond will become null and void following the award of contract and the City's receipt of the Performance Bond and Labor and Material Payment Bond, if required by the specifications. Should the Bidder fail to fulfill the contract as set forth, the bid security shall become payable to the City as liquidated damages. All Bid Security shall be held by the City's Finance Department. If deemed necessary by the City, the City may at any time deposit a certified or cashier's check submitted as bid security, and in the event of a refund of such security, the City shall issue a refund check drawn on its accounts.

### 2.14 Performance Security:

Unless this section is completely crossed out, the successful Bidder shall furnish as performance security a Performance Bond and a Labor and Material Payment Bond acceptable to the City prior to the start of any work. Each of the bonds shall be in the sum of 100% of the contract amount. The performance bond shall: 1) serve as security for faithful performance of the work: and 2) guarantee the work against defective workmanship and material for a period of not less than one (1) year following acceptance of the work. The Labor and Material Bond shall serve as securitythat all wages are paid and materials provided for the work are paid by the successful Bidder. For contract awards that are less than \$100,000.00, a Letter of Credit, in a form suitable to the City, may be submitted as performance security, instead of a Performance Bond and a Labor and Material Payment Bond. Any bond shall include a provision that will guarantee faithfulperformance in accordance with the Prevailing Wage Act, 820 ILCS 130/1, et. seq., and inaccordance with all of the terms of the Contract Documents (which shall be specifically referenced). The surety on the bond shall be a company that is licensed by the Department of Insurance authorizing it to execute surety bonds and the company shall have a financial strength rating of at least A- as rated by A.M. Best Company, Inc., Moody's Investors Service, Standard & Poor's Corporation, or a similar rating agency.

### 2.14.01 Letter of Credit - required content:

Any letter of credit (herein after LOC) submitted as performance security, as provided for in the Performance Security section of these Construction Supplemental Additional Conditions, must be established with the following required content.

The LOC must be irrevocable, made in favor of the City of DeKalb (Beneficiary), and for the account of the Bidder (Applicant). The aggregate amount of the LOC must be at least 100% of the awarded contract amount. The bank issuing the LOC must be acceptable to the City of DeKalb; written preapproval is required. The expiration date of the LOC must extend at least one (1) year beyond the anticipated completion date of the project, and will be extended at the expense of the Bidder if need be. The LOC must provide for partial drawings. Drawing(s) are to be made when the

City of DeKalb presents a letter to the issuing bank, signed by the City Manager or the acting City Manager, referencing the LOC number and stating the amount of funds to be drawn against the LOC and also containing the following declaration: "I hereby certify that the applicant has not performed as required by the contract established between the applicant and the City of DeKalb". Payment(s) against the LOC will be made by the issuing bank upon presentation of this letter. The issuing bank must have a branch or office whereupon presentation and demand may be made by the City within thirty (30) miles of City Hall.

#### 2.15 Waiver of Lien:

Where applicable, a Waiver of Lien and Contractor's Affidavit must be submitted by the Bidder, verifying that all contractors, subcontractors' materialmen, and material invoices have been paid prior to the City approving payment. Waivers must be in a format acceptable to the City.

### Section 3: Invitation for Bid

#### 3.01 Intent:

The intent of these specifications is to solicit sealed bids from reputable contractors who are capable of providing the specified products and services. The use of the words "Contractor" and "Contract" in this document refer to the firm whose services would be engaged upon successful acceptance of a bid and the agreement that would be executed between the City of DeKalb (hereafter City) and the successful firm.

## 3.02 Scope:

The Scope of this bid shall include completion of the Work as described in the attached Exhibit F.

The bid shall include all aspects associated with the Contractor furnishing products, services, materials, supervision, labor, tools, and equipment necessary to complete the Work as defined herein in a workmanlike and acceptable manner, meeting or exceeding the quality standards as indicated in the specifications. Services performed or products provided shall be performed/provided with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the profession currently practicing in the same locality under similar conditions. In the event that the Contractor fails to meet the foregoing standard, Contractor shall perform at its own cost, and without reimbursement from the City, the professional services necessary to correct errors and omissions caused by the Contractor's failure to comply with the above standard and reported to Contractor within one (1) year from the completion of the Contractor's services for this project and shall indemnify the City from any damages caused as a result thereof.

In the execution of the Work herein provided for there may be interference with and/or damage to trees, shrubbery, crops, fences, railroad tracks, overhead structures, underground structures, water mains, drains, service connections, wires, pipes, conduits or other structures or items located along, adjacent to and/or crossing the locations of the Work, and that it may be necessary to relocate or reconstruct certain of such structures, improvements and installations and/or to make repairs to the same by reasons of doing the Work herein provided for, and it is particularly

and specifically agreed that the Contractor shall do the Work necessary for such relocation, reconstruction and repair and shall bear and pay all of the cost and expense of such relocation, reconstruction and/or repair of and all damage done to all such items or adjacent properties existing at the date of execution of the contract or at the time of the Work which may be interfered with, damaged, and/or relocated, reconstructed, replaced or repaired in the performance of the Work, including the restoration and resurfacing of public streets and alleys, rights of way, easements and private property damaged or disturbed by the work, the same to be restored to as good condition as existed at the time of commencement of the Work. In the case of any City or publicly owned property damaged by the Contractor, the Contractor shall restore or replace the same subject to any conditions that the City may impose; the Contractor should inquire regarding restoration standards prior to bidding on the project unless it is willing to accept any directives from the City in this regard. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the City and City Indemnitees from any claims of third parties arising out of damage caused by the Contractor in the performance of the Work.

The successful Contractor shall execute a contract in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D within five days of the date of notification that it is the successful Contractor. Failure to execute the Agreement shall constitute grounds for the City to retain the bid security of the Contractor as liquidated damages, and to annul the award of the bid to the Contractor (and to either rebid the Work to contract with another bidder).

### 3.03 Qualifications:

The Contractor shall be fully licensed to work in the City, and in the State of Illinois. The Contractor shall submit sufficient evidence of the Contractor's and the Contractor's subcontractors, if any, qualifications, and abilities to complete the Contract, including references from similar relationships that are ongoing or recently completed. Subcontractors must also be licensed with the City.

Although price is a major consideration, product quality, references, service, delivery time and past experience, if applicable, will also be considered. No bid will be considered unless the Contractor shall furnish evidence satisfactory to the City that it has the necessary facilities, abilities, experience, equipment, and financial and physical resources available to fulfill the conditions of the contract and execute the Work should the contract be awarded to it. Bid documents which are not responsive to the requirements herein may not be considered by the City for an award of the contract. The contract will be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder. In determining the responsibility of the bidder, the City may take into account other factors in addition to financial responsibility, such as past records of its or other entities transactions with the Contractor, experience, ability to work cooperatively with the City and its staff, adequacy of equipment, ability to complete performance within necessary time limits, and other pertinent considerations such as, but not limited to, reliability, reputation, competency, skill, experience, efficiency, facilities and resources. The contract will be awarded in the City's best interests based on these and other legally-allowable considerations. The City and its representatives and agents may make any investigations deemed necessary to determine the ability of the bidder to perform

the Work. The Contractor shall furnish any information and data requested by the City for this purpose.

### 3.03.01 Professional Services Selection Act:

The City of DeKalb complies with the Professional Services Selection Act, 50 ILCS 510/5 with regard to the selection of parties to perform covered professional services. Any reference in these terms and conditions to supplying pricing or price as a determining factor in selection does not apply to services covered by said act.

# 3.04 Contract Management:

This Contract will be under the administration of the City Representative. Detailed daily supervision of the Contract shall be provided by the City Representative or by his or her authorized delegate(s). Any alterations or modifications of the work performed under the Contract shall be made only by written agreement between the Contractor and the City Manager or City Council and shall be made prior to commencement of the altered or modified work. No claims for any extra work or materials shall be allowed unless preceded by written agreement.

# 3.05 Protection of Public and Private Property:

The Contractor shall exercise all necessary caution to protect pedestrian traffic from injury and to protect all public and private property from damage caused by the Contractor's operations. Any practice obviously hazardous in the opinion of the City Representative or site representatives shall be immediately discontinued by the Contractor upon receipt of either written or oral notice to discontinue such practice. The City has the right to immediately stop any operation deemed unsafe. The Contractor shall comply with all OSHA and other federal, state, and municipal safety standards and policies. The Contractor shall provide copies of OSHA logs upon request.

### 3.06 Concurrent Operations:

The proposed Contract is a nonexclusive agreement with the City. The City reserves the right to use other Contractors or its own employees to perform work similar to that being performed under the terms of the Contract. Performance of work by others shall be construed as being consistent with the terms of the Contract and shall not be cause for the Contractor to cease performance of work as directed.

### 3.07 Licenses and Permits:

The Contractor shall, at their expense, procure all necessary licenses and permits needed to conduct the work required under the terms of this Contract. The City shall waive the cost of all required City licenses, fees, and permits, with the exception of those licenses and fees associated with securing a business license to conduct business within the City.

### 3.08 Severability:

If any portion of this Contract is found to be unenforceable by a competent court of law having jurisdiction, the remaining portions of the Contract shall remain in full force and effect.

#### 3.09 Accidents:

In the event of accidents of any kind, the Contractor shall immediately notify the City Supervisor and Police Department to secure a police report for insurance purposes and shall provide a full accounting of all details of the accident. The Contractor shall furnish the City's Legal Department with copies of all reports of such accidents at the same time that the reports are forwarded to any other interested parties. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with any investigation of an accident which occurs on City property or within City buildings.

#### 3.10 Sexual Harassment:

The City will not tolerate any act of sexual harassment by Contractors and their employees. Violation of this policy will be considered grounds for terminating either the Contract or the Contractor's employee from work on this Contract.

## 3.11 Blood borne Pathogens Exposure Control Plan:

The Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) in 29 CFR Part 1910.1030 require the City and its contractors to develop a written exposure control plan for blood borne pathogens for their employees. Prior to execution of this agreement, the successful Contractor shall supply the City with a copy of their Blood Borne Pathogens Exposure Control Plan; which shall be subject to the review of and approval by the City as a condition of the contract. The successful Contractor shall also identify any other applicable regulations relating to the performance of its obligations and shall comply with such obligations (and submit a written plan to the City if required under the applicable regulations). This plan shall include engineering controls, work practices, personal protective equipment, employee training, and recordkeeping procedures for all employees who could be exposed to blood borne pathogens. Each Contractor shall be responsible for identifying covered employees, developing an exposure control plan, training employees, identifying and providing Personal Protective Equipment, and developing recordkeeping measures. Education and training records must be kept by the Contractor, to include: name of employee, date(s) of training, and employee job title. The plan(s) shall be available to the City upon request. Contractor's employees shall assume that all human blood and body fluids containing human blood are infected with blood borne pathogens and shall follow the guidelines established by the Contractor.

#### 3.12 Term of Contract:

The initial term of this Contract shall run from execution of contract subject, however, to the right of the City to cancel and terminate the same at any time by giving a thirty (30) day notice in writing to the Contractor. In the event of such cancellation, the Contractor shall be entitled to receive payment for services and work performed, and materials, supplies and equipment furnished under the terms of the Contract prior to the effective date of such cancellation but will not be entitled to receive any damages on account of such or any further payment whatsoever.

The following provisions apply only if checked:

☑ One time contract, no term after delivery.

| Upon normal expiration of the Contract, the Contractor shall continue, at the sole option of |
|--|
| the City, to provide services on a month by month basis, under the same terms and            |
| conditions, for a period not to exceed four (4) months.                                      |
| ☐ Upon mutual agreement, this contract may be extended for, upon a                           |
| ninety (90) day written notice from the City of its intention to exercise this option. A one |
| (1) time economic adjustment for labor, material, supplies, and equipment costs shall be     |
| allowed for each one (1) year extension to the Contract after the initial one (1) year       |
| Contract period. This economic adjustment may not exceed the published Chicago Area          |
| Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the previous twelve (12) month period.                        |
|  |
| □ Other:   |
|  |

The initial Contract places no obligation on the City to appropriate funds, and continuation of this Agreement beyond the initial term of the Contract and Contract extensions are dependent upon sufficient funds being appropriated each fiscal year by the City for this work.

### 3.13 References:

Bidders shall provide a list of not less than five (5) current customers with their bid submittal, said information to include name and address of the firm, and contact names with their daytime phone number, that can speak to the quality of services provided by the Contractor, and the addresses of facilities maintained by the prospective firm. In the event Contractor proposes to utilize Subcontractors, five (5) references shall be provided for each Subcontractor as well.

# 3.14 Special and Unforeseen Work:

Due to the generalized nature of the work under this Contract, instances may occur where the City desires to have additional materials or services provided outside the original intent of this Contract. Payment for these services shall be made based on a bid price per manhour for the performance of the additional work as bid on the *Bid Sheet*. Requests for additional work shall be authorized in writing only through the Director or designee.

Contractor shall make no claim against the City and no claim shall be allowed for any damages which may arise out of any delay caused by the City or City Indemnitees. Contractor's sole remedy for a City-cased delay shall be a day-for-day extension of time to complete the Contract.

# 3.15 Exceptions:

Any exceptions to the specifications are to be noted on the *Detail Exceptions Sheet* and included with the bid at the time of submittal.

#### 3.16 Communications:

The Contractor shall set up a communication process that will enable City representatives to contact appropriate representatives from the Contractor twenty-four (24) hour a day, seven (7) days a week. The Contractor and the City shall jointly establish a written message system

whereby notice may be given by the City to the Contractor indicating problems, complaints, and other Contract discrepancies. The system shall include a method by which the Contractor shall formally respond to these requests and notices.

### 3.17 Security and Access:

The Contractor may be working in several areas which are under secured access and other areas which will be generally open to the public during reasonable hours for meetings and other uses. All secured areas shall be maintained in a secured condition and these areas shall be locked immediately upon completing the required work. All areas shall be secured when the Contractor has completed their daily operations.

Access cards or keys will be furnished to the Contractor for designated staff to use while in performance of the awarded contract. The access cards or keys will be issued from and shall be returned to a designated City employee at the completion of the contract. The Contractor's representative shall sign for each access card or key set received and a log shall be maintained by the City. The City Representative may establish additional restrictions relative to any access cards or key sets.

#### 3.18 Hours of Work:

The Contractor shall schedule normal work hours for crews that consider the hours of operations for its services. The Contractor shall provide to the City Representative, for his or her approval, a schedule of proposed regular working hours for all buildings prior to the start of the Contract. Any changes in these regularly scheduled hours shall require prior written notice to and approval by the City Representative. All proposed hours of work shall comply with the then-current City of DeKalb noise ordinances as may be in effect, for work performed in the City of DeKalb.

### 3.19 Handling of Waste:

The Contractor shall ensure that their personnel properly dispose of waste and recyclables. This shall include recyclable goods and bio-hazards, in accordance with the plans and procedures approved by the City. Under no circumstances shall the contractor dispose of recyclable materials in the trash.

#### 3.20 Work Crew Supervision:

The Contractor shall provide qualified Supervisors to supervise each crew engaged in work under the Contract. The Supervisor shall be authorized by the Contractor to accept and act upon all directives issued by the City Representative. Failure of a Supervisor to act on said directives shall be sufficient cause for the City to give notice that the Contractor is in default of the Contract unless such directives would create potential personal injury or safety hazards, or such directives are contrary to the intent of these specifications.

The Supervisors shall be responsible for the instruction and training of personnel in the proper work methods and procedures. The Supervisors will schedule and coordinate all services and functions as required by the Contract and as specified in the task schedules.

Each Supervisor is required to check and verify Contract compliance before work crews leave each day. The Supervisor shall inform the City Representative of any item(s) which require additional follow-up to fully meet the Contract requirements. Written reports shall be submitted to the City Representative on such basis as the City Representative shall require, but not more frequently than daily.

The Supervisors shall be physically fit, fluent in both written and spoken conversational English, self-motivated, and capable of working without direct supervision.

### 3.21 Contractor's Personnel:

The Contractor shall be expected to supply a sufficient number of personnel to be able to complete all workmanship standards as set forth in these specifications. All of the Contractor's personnel shall be fluent in both written English, where essential to the performance of responsibilities, and spoken conversational English, self-motivated, capable of working without direct supervision, and have received appropriate training in order to deal with sexual harassment and bio-hazard handling situations.

The following bracketed paragraph applies only if this section is checked.

All Contractor employees shall display City approved photo identification badges while working on City premises. No employees shall be allowed access to any area without displaying the required identification badge. Employees shall wear uniforms, which shall consist of a shirt/blouse and pants, consistent in color and appearance, featuring a company identification patch at all times while working on City premises. The City shall be informed of any changes in the uniform articles that the Contractor plans to introduce; uniforms shall be subject to pre-approval by the City.

# 3.21.01 Background Investigation:

Where the Contractor is engaging in work of a sensitive nature or working in an environment with exposure to confidential information, or under such other circumstance as the City shall deem appropriate, the City may require the Contractor to comply with the terms of this section 3.21.01. In such case, prior to commencing work, the Contractor shall submit to the Chief of Police, or designee, the names, home addresses, date of birth, social security numbers, immigration documents (if applicable), and driver's license numbers of all employees to be engaged in work specified herein or having access to the buildings in an inspecting or supervisory capacity, and the Contractor shall cause to be completed fingerprint charts and personal history statements of all employees. No employees shall commence work at any time during the Contract period until the above listed information has been submitted to and written clearance received from the Chief of Police. The Contractor shall provide written authorization from prospective employees for the City to perform the security clearances required in this Contract. Employees of the Contractor shall be subject to the same standards of pre-employment examinations as regular full-time employees of the City and shall be held to the same standards of conduct. The Contractor will provide and maintain a current list of employees working on the City account to include locations

and times at locations. Copies for the listing shall be issued to the Chief of Police, Director, and Foreman.

The City shall have and shall exercise full and complete control over granting, denying, withholding, or terminating clearance for Contractor's employees. Employees whom the City deems careless, discourteous, or otherwise objectionable or who cannot meet standards required for security or other reasons shall be prohibited from performing work.

# **Section 4: Materials and Equipment**

### 4.01 City to Furnish:

In support of this Contract, the City will supply the Contractor with any items listed on the description of Work. No other items shall be supplied by the City, without the City's express, written consent.

#### 4.02 Contractor to Furnish:

The Contractor shall provide, at his/her expense and at no additional cost to the City, all other equipment and supplies required to support the work activities as specified, with the exception of those items being provided by the City as itemized herein.

The Contractor shall make available to the City samples of the supplies they propose to use to enable the City to assess product quality and safety. If for any reason the City objects to the use of a given product, the Contractor shall discontinue use and find a substitute that is acceptable to the City. Quality assessment shall be at the sole judgment of the City, whose decision shall be final.

All products supplied and used under this Contract shall be new and within product expiration dates. Expired products will not be used. They must meet all applicable federal, state, and local standards for product safety. *Products and containers shall be properly labeled* to meet all applicable standards and regulations regarding safety, toxicity, and other standards. Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) shall be supplied as required for all affected products at all sites, and the Contractor is responsible to keep all MSDS books current.

#### 4.03 Standards and Workmanship:

It is the intent of these specifications for the Contractor to provide a high level of service. The following statements indicate the general standards and workmanship to be furnished under this Contract. More detailed standards and specifications are provided later in these specifications.

### 4.03.01 Restrictive or Ambiguous Specifications:

It is the responsibility of the bidding firm to review the invitation to bid specifications and to notify the City Representative if the specifications are formulated in a manner that would unnecessarily restrict competition. Any such protest or question regarding the specifications or invitation to bid procedures must be received by the City not later than at the pre-bid meeting. In

the event a contract term is not defined within the contract document, the term will be given its ordinary dictionary meaning.

# Section: 5: Performance and Payment

### 5.01 Disputes:

The Contractor will be expected to faithfully perform all work as set forth in these specifications. If the Contractor fails to faithfully perform in accordance with the specifications or if a dispute arises as to the quality and/or quantity of work completed, the City Representative reserves the right to withhold authorization for payment of completed work until such time that performance has been improved or the dispute resolved. In those instances, when a dispute cannot be resolved between the Contractor and the City Representative, the dispute shall be resolved by the City Manager whose decision shall be final.

### 5.02 Payment:

Payment for all work completed and accepted will be made on a monthly basis (where possible, based upon the schedule for submittal of items to regularly scheduled City Council meetings) per the Contract prices including other agreements authorized in writing as per *Special and Unforeseen Work*. The Contractor shall submit an itemized monthly invoice, by facility, to the City for all work completed during the month, on or before the first Monday of the following month.

The Contractor shall also submit with the monthly invoice their current price list, and a copy of the Contractor's invoice for the applicable supplies provided to the City, all of which is for informational purposes only. The City will make payment within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice and acceptance by the City.

#### 5.02.01 Taxes:

No charge will be allowed for taxes which the City is exempt from paying. The City of DeKalb is not liable for the Illinois Retailers' Occupation Tax, the Service Occupation Tax or the Service Use Tax. The City is also exempt from Federal Excise and Transportation Tax.

### 5.03 Penalties:

Any deficiency communicated in writing to the Contractor, and not corrected within the time limits allotted by the City Representative, shall become subject to a financial penalty for nonperformance or substandard performance (including inappropriate materials and equipment). Penalties, if any, shall be withheld from the monthly payment by the City. Penalties, if applied, do not limit the right of the City to seek other redress for nonperformance or substandard performance. Penalties shall be assessed per occurrence. The purpose of penalties is to ensure quality of service to the City. For the purpose of penalties, the monthly fee shall be the yearly price divided by twelve (12). Assessment of any penalty shall in no way absolve the Contractor from the responsibility to complete or correct the unsatisfactory or uncompleted work. The City

reserves the right to set aside additional retention if deemed necessary by the City to protect against any deficient performance or to otherwise protect the City's interests.

# **Exhibit A: Detailed Cost Sheet**

<u>Note</u>: The total extended cost must be transferred to the *Bid Sheet*. Failure of the Bidder to complete the *Detailed Cost Sheet* OR transfer the extended total cost to the *Bid Sheet* may be cause for rejection of the bid submittal.

Detailed cost breakdown is not provided. See Exhibit B for pricing.

### **Exhibit B: Bid Sheet**

## Note: the Bidder must complete all portions of the Bid Sheet.

The undersigned, having examined the specifications and all conditions affecting the specified project, offer to furnish all services, labor, and incidentals specified for the price below.

The undersigned Bidder certifies that they are not barred from bidding on this contract as a result of a conviction for the violation of state laws prohibiting bid rigging or bid rotating, (720ILCS 5/33E-1, et seq.) and is not delinquent in any taxes to the Illinois Department of Revenue. (65ILCS 5/11-42.1-1)

It is understood that the City reserves the right to reject any and all bids and to waive any irregularities and that the prices contained herein will remain valid for a period of not less than sixty (60) days.

Bidders are requested to submit individual pricing for each Project Task (asbestos abatement, demolition of structure, demolition of parking lot), and to submit a package price for all work contemplated by these bid specifications. The City reserves the right to award all or some part of this work to individual bidders (e.g., the City may select different contractors to perform each Project Task) or may select a single bidder to perform all Project Tasks. The City also reserves the right to waive competitive bidding and award a contract for the performance of all or some portion of the project. The City also reserves the right to only complete certain portions of the project (e.g., asbestos mitigation and demolition of the structure, without removal of the parking lot). Submission of a bid constitutes acceptance of these specifications.

| Bidding Company Name: Northern Illinois Service Co.                   |  |                           |         |                             |  |
|---|--|---------------------------|---------|-----------------------------|--|
| Based upon the scope of work in Exhibit F, please submit pricing for: |  |                           |         |                             |  |
| _   | Cost of Building Demo<br>including asbestos mi |                           | on wit  | hin building footprint (not |  |
| 2)  | Cost of Parking Lot re                         | moval and restoration     | \$      | 88,382.00                   |  |
| 3)  | Package price for all w                        | ork listed in lines 1-2 ( | f diffe | rent from sum of lines 1-2) |  |
|   |  |                           | \$      | 237,883.00                  |  |

| <ol> <li>Projected project timeframe/5days</li> </ol> |
|---|
|---|

A final project scope and timeline will be negotiated before the contract is executed. The final project scope and timeline will be included in the final agreement between the City and Contractor.

Q Our firm has not altered any of the written text within this document. Only those areas requiring input by the respondent have been changed or completed.

| If it is the Contractor's intention to utilize a subcontractor(s) to fulfill the requirements of this contract, the City must be advised of the subcontractor's company name, address, telephone and fax numbers, and a contact person's name at the time of bid submittal. |              |  |
|---|--------------|--|
| Will you be utilizing a subcontractor?  | XX YES       | □NO  |
| If yes, have you included all required information with your bid submittal?   | <b>Ճ</b> YES | □ NO   |
| Are your subcontractors registered to do business with the City?  | □ YES        | Subcontractor will NOregister prior to completing work |

- OR-

**INDEMNIFICATION**: The Bidder hereby agrees to protect, defend, indemnify, and save harmless the City against loss, damage, or expense from any suit, claim, demand, judgment, cause of action, or shortage initiated by any person whatsoever, arising or alleged to have arisen out of work described herein, except that in no instance shall the Bidder be held responsible for any liability, claim, demand, or cause of action attributable solely to the intentional misconduct of the City. The Bidder agrees to indemnify, defend, insure, and hold harmless the City in compliance with the most stringent language in this bid package.

I hereby certify that the item(s) proposed is/are in accordance with the specifications as noted and that the prices quoted are not subject to change; and that the Company submitting this bid complies with the Bidder Certifications included in the Form of Agreement attached as Exhibit D.

**TOTAL PRICE:** The Bidder hereby affirms and states that the prices quoted herein constitute the total cost to the City for all work involved in the respective items and that this cost also includes all insurance, royalties, transportation charges, use of all tools and equipment, superintendence, overhead expenses, all profits and all other work, services and conditions, necessarily involved in the work to be done and materials to be furnished in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents considered severally and collectively.

#### Northern Illinois Service Co.

Signed Name and Title

**President** 

**Street Address** 

Bidder's Firm Name

Rockford, IL

61109

City

State

4781 Sandy Hollow Rd.

Zip Code

815-874-4422

**Phone Number** 

4/11/2022

Date

Wayne Klinger, President

**Print Name and Title** 

estimating@northernillinoisservice.com

E-mail Address

815-874-1944

Fax Number

Contact for questions regarding bid:

Paul Munson, Estimator/Project Manager

mobile: 815-378-7880

e-mail: paul@northernillinoisservice.com

## **Exhibit C: Detailed Exceptions Sheet**

**EXCEPTIONS**: Any exception to any term of this document or to the Agreement <u>must</u> be clearly noted on the *Detail Exceptions Sheet(s)*. Failure to do so may be reason for rejection of the bid. It is not our intention to prohibit any potential Bidder from bidding by virtue of the specifications, but to describe the material(s) and service(s) actually required. The City reserves the right to accept or reject any or all exceptions.

DETAIL EXCEPTIONS SHEET MUST BE ENCLOSED WITH BID SHEET. ATTACH ADDITIONAL PAGES IF NECESSARY.

Bidder's exceptions are:

NONE

| SECTION<br>NUMBER | EXCEPTION TITLE | EXCEPTION DETAIL |  |
|-------------------|-----------------|------------------|--|
|                   |                 |                  |  |
|                   |                 |                  |  |
|                   |                 |                  |  |
|                   |                 |                  |  |
|                   |                 |                  |  |
|                   |                 |                  |  |
|                   |                 |                  |  |
|                   |                 |                  |  |
|                   |                 |                  |  |
|                   |                 |                  |  |
|                   |                 |                  |  |
|                   |                 |                  |  |

## **Exhibit D: Form of Agreement**

## **Independent Contractor Agreement for Services**

THIS AGREEMENT, by and between the City of DeKalb, hereinafter referred to as the "City" and "Northern Illinois Service Co". hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor", with the City and Contractor agreeing as follows

#### A. Services:

Contractor agrees to furnish to the City the following services:

Contractor represents that it possesses the skills and knowledge necessary to provide all such services and understands that the City is relying upon such representation. Contractor further acknowledges that Exhibit A is an integral part of this Agreement and may not be modified except in accordance with a modification to the terms of this Agreement.

#### B. Term:

Services will be provided as needed and directed by the City beginning on the date of execution of this agreement and continuing, until terminated by either party upon 7 days written notice to the non-terminating party. Upon termination the Contractor shall be compensated for all work performed for the City prior to termination and shall provide to the City all work completed through the date of termination. The City's issuance of a notice of termination shall function as a stop work order, beyond which the Contractor shall not incur any additional costs without the City's express, written permission.

#### C. Compensation:

Contractor shall receive as compensation for all work and services to be performed herein, an amount based on the fee schedule attached hereto as Exhibit XX. All payments will be made according to the Illinois State Prompt Payment Act.

Any payment made to the Contractor shall be strictly on the basis of quantum meruit. The Contractor shall submit to the City a detailed breakdown and invoice of all charges, including detail of past payments and amounts still remaining due, accurate to the date of the invoice, with each request for payment. Any additions to or deductions from the approved total amount of the contract, and any out of scope work shall require prior, written approval from the City. Any work performed without the City's express, written consent shall be solely at the expense of the Contractor.

#### D. Changes in Rates of Compensation (and Prevailing Wages):

If the Contractor seeks to impose any change in the fee schedule (whether in terms of hourly fee or lump sum fees), then the Contractor shall provide not less than ninety days written notice of its intent to change its fee schedule, and any such change in fee schedule shall require the approval of the City. To the extent applicable, the contractor shall further comply the requirements of the Prevailing Wage Act in that all laborers, mechanics and other workers performing work under this Agreement which is subject to the Prevailing Wage Act shall be paid not less than the general prevailing rate of hourly wage as provided for in 820 ILCS 130/1 et seq. Prevailing wage records must be submitted with each invoice submitted; invoices submitted without corresponding prevailing wage records will not be processed until the certified payrolls are submitted.

#### E. Ownership of Records and Documents / Confidential Information:

Contractor agrees to keep and maintain all books and records and other recorded information required to comply with any applicable laws, including but not limited to the Prevailing Wage Act. Contractor agrees to keep such information confidential and not to disclose or disseminate the information to third parties without the consent of the City. Contractor further agrees to keep as confidential any information belonging or relating to the City, which is of a confidential nature, including without limitation information which is proprietary, personal, required by law to be confidential, or relates to the business, operations or accounts of the City. This confidentiality shall not apply to material or information, which would otherwise be subject to public disclosure through the freedom of information act or if already previously disclosed by a third party. Contractor acknowledges that the Freedom of Information Act, 5 ILCS 140/1 et seq. (the "Act") places an obligation on the City to produce certain records that may be in the possession of Contractor. Contractor shall comply with the record retention and documentation requirements of the Local Records Act 50 ILCS 205/1 et seq. and the Act and shall maintain all records relating to this Agreement in compliance with the Local Records Retention Act and the Act (complying in all respects as if the Contractor was, in fact, the City). Contractor shall review its records promptly and produce to the City within two business days of contact from the City the required documents responsive to a request under the Act. If additional time is necessary to comply with the request, the Contractor may request the City to extend the time do so, and the City will, if time and a basis for extension under the Act permits, consider such extensions.

#### F. Governing Law:

This contract shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois. Venue and jurisdiction for any legal action arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be exclusively fixed in the DeKalb County Circuit Court, DeKalb County, Illinois.

#### G. Independent Contractor:

Contractor shall have sole control over the manner and means of providing the work and services performed under this agreement. The City's relationship to the Contractor under this agreement shall be that of an independent contractor. Contractor will not be considered an employee to the City for any purpose. The parties agree that the Contractor is exclusively responsible for the determination of what work is required to complete the tasks outlined in Exhibit XX, and for the means and methods of completing such work. The City's compensation to Contractor shall be limited to that described in Exhibit XX, and the City shall not reimburse any expenses, provide any benefits, withhold any employment taxes, or otherwise have a financial relationship with Contractor other than payment of the stated compensation. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for withholding of taxes, providing employee benefits, or otherwise complying with applicable laws relating to its employees or contractors.

In the event that the City determines, in its sole discretion, that it is economically advantageous for the City to provide certain supplies or tools for use by Contractor in lieu of paying Contractor to provide the same, the City and Contractor agree that Contractor shall then utilize the City's equipment or supplies according to its own determination of their best and appropriate use. Contractor shall be responsible for its' own personnel, training, instruction, and related matters. Contractor shall be responsible for determining its sequence of performance for required work. Contractor's work shall be evaluated by the City based upon the end result of such work. Contractor shall be responsible for any expenses incurred by Contractor in the performance of its work, and shall not be authorized, expressly or impliedly, to obligate the City on any debt, contract, or other agreement whatsoever. In the event that Contractor is compensated on an hourly basis under the terms of this Agreement, the City and Contractor agree that Contractor's compensation is usual and customary, based on the terms that Contractor offers its services to the market in general.

The Contractor acknowledges that neither it nor its personnel shall be acting as an employee or official representative of the City for purposes of being offered any protection or coverage under City insurance policies for tort immunity or other legal purposes.

#### H. Certifications:

Executing this Agreement constitutes acknowledgment, acceptance, and certification of the accuracy of the following certifications, and any other certifications required under any applicable law relating to the performance of this Agreement. The Contractor is responsible for identifying all such applicable regulations and certifications, and for compliance with the same.

Sexual Harassment: The Contractor certifies that it is in compliance with the Illinois Human Rights Act 775 ILCS 5/1.101, et seq. including establishment and maintenance of sexual harassment policies and program.

Tax Delinquency: The Contractor certifies that it is not delinquent in payment of any taxes to the Illinois Department of Revenue in accordance with 65 ILCS 5/11-42.1 and is not delinquent in the payment of any tax, charge, or obligation to the City of DeKalb.

*Employment Status*: The Contractor certifies that if any of its personnel are an employee of the State of Illinois, they have permission from their employer to perform the service.

Anti-Bribery: The Contractor certifies it is not barred under 30 Illinois Compiled Statutes 500/50-5(a) - (d) from contracting as a result of a conviction for or admission of bribery or attempted bribery of an officer or employee of the State of Illinois or any other state.

Loan Default: If the Contractor is an individual, the Contractor certifies that he/she is not in default for a period of six months or more in an amount of \$600 or more on the repayment of any educational loan guaranteed by the Illinois State Scholarship Commission made by an Illinois institution of higher education or any other loan made from public funds for the purpose of financing higher education (5 ILCS 385/3).

Felony Certification: The Contractor certifies that it is not barred pursuant to 30 ILCS 500/50-10 from conducting business with the State of Illinois or any agency as a result of being convicted of a felony.

Barred from Contracting: The Contractor certifies that it has not been barred from contracting as a result of a conviction for bid-rigging or bid rotating under 720 ILCS 5/33E3 (Bid Rigging) or 720 ILCS 5/33-4 (Bid Rotating) or a similar law of another state or of the federal government.

Prevailing Wage: The Contractor certifies that it shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Prevailing Wage Act, and further certifies that it is not in violation of said Act and has not been barred from bidding on this proposal by virtue of a past violation of the Act. A copy of the most recent available list of prevailing wages is attached hereto or has been provided to the Contractor. The Contractor is responsible for regularly updating said list as new prevailing wage rates are made available by the City or by the Illinois Department of Labor. The Illinois Department of Labor posts regular updates to prevailing wage rates on its official website, which is currently <a href="https://www.illinois.gov/idol">www.illinois.gov/idol</a>. This notice is given pursuant to 820 ILCS 130/4 and the balance of the Illinois Prevailing Wage Act, which is incorporated herein by reference as if fully restated.

Drug Free Workplace: The Contractor certifies that it is in compliance with the Drug Free Workplace Act (30 Illinois Compiled Statutes 580) as of the effective date of this contract. The Drug Free Workplace Act requires, in part, that Contractors, with 25 or more employees certify and agree to take steps to ensure a drug free workplace by informing employees of the dangers of drug abuse, of the availability of any treatment or assistance program, of prohibited activities and of sanctions that will be imposed for violations; and that individuals with contracts certify that they will not engage in the manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance in the performance of the contract. The Contractor further certifies that it

maintains a substance-abuse program and provide drug testing in accordance with 820 ILCS 130/11G, Public Act 0950635

Responsible Contractor Requirements: The Contractor certifies that it complies with the Illinois Procurement Code and the provisions of Section 30-22 thereof relating to apprenticeship and training, if applicable.

Non-Discrimination, Certification, and Equal Employment Opportunity: The Contractor agrees to comply with applicable provisions of the Illinois Human Rights Act (775 Illinois Compiled Statutes 5), the U.S. Civil Rights Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act, Section 504 of the U.S. Rehabilitation Act and the rules applicable to each. The equal opportunity clause of Section 750.10 of the Illinois Department of Human Rights Rules is specifically incorporated herein. The Contractor shall comply with Executive Order 11246, entitled Equal Employment Opportunity, as amended by Executive Order 11375, and as supplemented by U.S. Department of Labor regulations (41 C.F.R. Chapter 60). The Contractor agrees to incorporate this clause into all subcontracts under this Contract. The Contractor acknowledges that neither it nor the City shall discriminate on the basis of any protected classification.

Record Retention and Audits: If 30 ILCS 500/20-65 requires the Contractor (and any subcontractors) to maintain, for a period of 3 years after the later of the date of completion of this Contract or the date of final payment under the Contract, all books and records relating to the performance of the Contract and necessary to support amounts charged to the City under the Contract. The Contract and all books and records related to the Contract shall be available for review and audit by the City and the Illinois Auditor General. If this Contract is funded from contract/grant funds provided by the U.S. Government, the Contract, books, and records shall be available for review and audit by the Comptroller General of the U.S. and/or the Inspector General of the federal sponsoring agency. The Contractor agrees to cooperate fully with any audit and to provide full access to all relevant materials.

United States Resident Certification: (This certification must be included in all contracts involving personal services by non-resident aliens and foreign entities in accordance with requirements imposed by the Internal Revenue Services for withholding and reporting federal income taxes.) The Contractor certifies that he/she/it is a: 

United

States Citizen or Corporation 
Resident Alien 
Non-Resident Alien. The Internal Revenue Service requires that taxes be withheld on payments made to non-resident aliens for the performance of personal services at the rate of 30%.

| Tax Payer Certification: Under penalties of perjury, the Contractor certifies that its Federal |
|--|
| Tax Payer Identification Number or Social Security Number is 36-2705205 and is doing           |
| business as a (check one): ☐ Individual ☐ Real Estate Agent ☐ Sole                             |
| Proprietorship ☐ Government Entity ☐ Partnership ☐ Tax Exempt Organization (IRC 501(a)         |
| only)   ■ Corporation □ Not for Profit Corporation □ Trust or Estate □ Medical and Health Care |
| Services Provider Corp.  |

Authorized in Illinois: The Contractor that it is authorized to lawfully transact business in the State of Illinois, under all applicable Illinois laws and regulations. The Contractor certifies that it shall comply with the Corporate Accountability for Tax Administration Act, 20 ILCS 715/1, et. seq. Where applicable, the Contractor certifies that it is not barred from bidding by virtue of having been adjudicated to have committed a willing or knowing violation of Section 42 of the Environmental Protection Act within the five years preceding this bid, pursuant to 415 ILCS 5/1, et. seq. The Contractor further certifies that it is in compliance with all applicable requirements of the Business Enterprise for Minorities, Females and Persons with Disabilities Act, 30 ILCS 575/1, et. seq.

Export Administration, Supplies, Labor: The Contractor certifies that neither it nor any substantially owned affiliate is participating, nor shall participate, in an international boycott which is in violation of the provisions of the US Export Administration Act of 1979, or the regulations of the US Department of Commerce promulgated under the Act, including but not limited to the requirements of 30 ILCS 582/5. The Contractor further certifies that no foreign made equipment, materials or supplies furnished under the proposal or agreement have been or will be produced in whole or in part by forced labor, convict labor, or indentured labor, nor made in whole or in part by the labor of any child under the age of 12, under penal sanction pursuant to 30 ILCS 583/1 and 30 ILCS 584/1. The Contractor certifies that steel products used or supplied in the performance of a contract for public works shall be manufactured or produced in the United States, unless the City Manager grants an exception to said requirement, pursuant to 30 ILCS 565/1, et. seq.

General Compliance and Certification: The Contractor certifies that it has and will comply with all other applicable laws, regulations, ordinances, or restrictions applicable to any component of the bidding process, agreement, or any services or materials provided in connection therewith. The Contractor acknowledges that it is responsible for identifying and complying with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations, and that it shall indemnify and hold harmless the City of DeKalb from any claim, liability or damages arising out of the failure to identify or comply with any such applicable legal restriction.

#### I. Indemnification:

The Contractor shall be responsible for any and all damages to property or persons arising out of an error, omission, and/or negligent act in the prosecution of the work or failure to prosecute the work and shall indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents, and employees from all suits, claims, actions, or damages of any nature whatsoever resulting therefrom. The Company shall assume all restitution and repair costs arising out of an error, omission and/or negligence.

The Contractor agrees to indemnify and save harmless the City, including its elected or appointed officials, employees, attorneys and agents (collectively, the "City Indemnitees") against any and all claims, loss damage, injury, liability, and court costs and attorney's fees incident thereto, including any claims made by employees of the Contractor or any of their subcontractors, as well as all other

persons, resulting directly or indirectly from the work covered by this contract or the equipment used in connection therewith. It is understood that this agreement shall apply to any and all such claims whether resulting from the negligence or the intentional acts of the Contractor, the Contractor's employees, contractors or subcontractors, the City, or City Indemnitees or otherwise, with the single exception of any claim, damage, loss, or expense arising solely out of the intentional misconduct of the City or City Indemnitees. The Contractor is solely responsible for determining the accuracy and validity of any information provided to the Contractor by the City or its representatives. This indemnification shall apply to the fullest extent of the law, and in the event that any provision hereof is determined to be unenforceable, the indemnification obligations shall be severable and the fullest extent of indemnification that may lawfully apply shall remain in full force and effect.

This indemnification shall include any claims arising out of the erection, construction, placement or operation of any scaffold, hoist, crane, stay, ladders, support, or other mechanical contrivance in connection with such work including but not limited to losses, claims, damages, and expenses arising pursuant to claims asserted against the City pursuant to theories premised upon Section 414 or Section 343 of the Restatement (Second) of Torts. This indemnification shall not be limited in any way by limitations on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Contractor under Workers' Compensation Acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts, and serves as an express agreement to waive the protection of *Kotecki v. Cyclops Welding Corp*, 146 Ill.2d 155 (1991) in Illinois.

## J. Insurance, Licensure, and Intellectual Property:

The Contractor shall comply with all insurance requirements described on the attached Exhibit C. The Contractor agrees and warrants that it has procured all licenses, permits or other official permissions required by any applicable law to perform the services contemplated herein, that it will procure all additional licenses, permits or other official permissions hereafter required by law during the term of this Agreement, and that it will keep all such licenses in effect during the term of this Agreement. The Contractor shall provide a copy of any such licenses or permits upon request. All such insurance and licensure shall be provided at the Contractor's sole expense. Contractor also warrants that it has complete ownership or authorization/entitlement to any intellectual property, software, images, or other such items used in the performance of its work under this Agreement, and that it shall transfer to the City, unrestricted, the ability to modify, amend, publicize or otherwise utilize any intellectual property provided to the City under this Agreement unless the City expressly preapproves in writing a limitation to these provisions.

The Contractor shall not commence work under this Contract until they have obtained all insurance required and such insurance has been submitted to and approved by the City, nor shall the Contractor permit any Subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until the same insurance has been obtained by the Subcontractor. The Company and all Subcontractors shall maintain their insurance in place for not less than two (2) years following completion of all work required under this Contract.

All drawings, specifications, reports, and any other project documents prepared by the Contractor in connection with any or all of the services to be furnished thereunder shall be delivered to the City for the expressed use of the City. The Contractor shall have the right to retain original documents but shall cause to be delivered to the City such quality of documents so as to assure total reproducibility of the documents delivered. All information, worksheets, reports, design calculations, plans and specifications shall be the sole property of the City unless otherwise specified in the negotiated agreement. The Contractor agrees that basic survey notes and sketches, charts, computations, and other data prepared or obtained by the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement shall be made available, upon request, to the City without cost and without restriction or limitation as to their use. All field notes, test records, and reports shall be available to the City upon request.

#### K. Additional Terms or Modification:

The terms of this agreement shall be further modified as provided on the attached Exhibit A, Exhibit B and Exhibit C. Except for those terms included on Exhibit A, Exhibit B and Exhibit C, no additional terms are included as a part of this agreement. All prior understandings and agreements between the parties are merged into this agreement, and this agreement may not be modified orally or in any manner other than by an agreement in writing signed by both parties. The City reserves the right by written amendment to make changes in requirements, amount of work, or time schedule adjustments. The Contractor shall negotiate appropriate adjustments acceptable to both parties to accommodate any changes. The City may, at any time by written order, require the Contractor to stop all or part of the services required by this Agreement. Upon receipt of such an order, the Contractor shall immediately comply with its terms and take all steps to minimize the occurrence of costs allocable to the services covered by the order. If the Contractor identifies any costs associated with the suspension of services, such costs must be expressly approved by the City in writing, or they shall be the sole expense of the Contractor.

#### L. Notices:

All notices required to be given under the terms of this License shall be given mail, addressed to the parties as follows:

| For the City:      | For the Contractor:           |  |
|--------------------|-------------------------------|--|
| City Manager       | Wayne Klinger, President      |  |
| City of DeKalb     | Northern Illinois Service Co. |  |
| 164 W. Lincoln Hwy |                               |  |
| DeKalb. IL 60115   | Rockford, IL 61109            |  |

Either of the parties may designate in writing from time to time substitute addresses or persons in connection with required notices.

#### M: Subcontractors and Third Parties:

Contractor shall not assign or subcontract for the performance of any obligation under this Agreement, except with the express, written preapproval of the City, which consent may be withheld in the City's sole and absolute discretion. Should Contractor assign any obligation arising under this Agreement with the consent of the City, the Contractor shall remain to be primarily liable to the City for the performance of the obligation in question, and further shall be liable for ensuring that the subcontractor(s) comply with all obligations arising under this Agreement as if the subcontractor(s) was/were the Contractor itself. Further, should Contractor request to assign the performance of any obligation arising hereunder to a subcontractor, Contractor expressly provides its consent to the City contracting directly with such proposed subcontractor (or another subcontractor acceptable to the City) for the performance of such work, and to the amendment of this Agreement to reduce the scope and cost accordingly.

Nothing contained in this Agreement, nor the performance of the parties hereunder, is intended to benefit, nor shall it inure to the benefit of any third party.

## .N. Progress Reports:

Contractor shall report to the City Manager or her designee, and shall submit written progress reports identifying, in detail, the extent of work completed, the percentage of project completion, and project status, accompanying any invoice submitted to the City. Contractor shall also provide additional written or verbal progress reports to the City upon request, at any time, without additional charge. The Contractor shall attend conferences and visit the site of the work as may be outlined in the Request for Proposal and at any reasonable time when requested to do so by the City, at no additional charge.

| Agreed to this 25 day of 20g | <del>)</del> |      |
|------------------------------|--------------|------|
| City of DeKalb               | Contractor   |      |
| Manager Manager              |              | City |
| Executive assl.              |              |      |

# **Exhibit E: Insurance Requirements:**

#### 1. All Contractors and All Contracts.

Contractor shall provide any and all insurance required under any applicable law, regulation, statute, or ordinance, including but not limited to workers' compensation insurance, unemployment insurance, automobile liability insurance and other legally required insurance.

Contractor shall produce a certificate evidencing current coverage, upon request from the City. Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all liability, damage, cost, or expense which the City may incur or be liable to pay as a result of any and all accidental injuries or damages suffered by the Consultant or its employees (in addition to any other required indemnification or insurance from Consultant).

#### 2. Certificates and General Conditions:

Unless otherwise indicated herein, any certificate of insurance shall further indicate that the City is additional *primary* insured on such policy of insurance, shall indicate that such policies shall not have any right of subrogation against the City or the City's insurers, and shall indicate that said policy shall not be cancelled or revoked except after the provision of not less than thirty (30) days' notice to the City. Contractor shall maintain said policy in full force and effect for the duration of this Agreement and shall periodically provide updated certificates of insurance to evidence continuing coverage in compliance herewith. For purposes of this Agreement and insurance provided hereunder, the "City" shall include the City of DeKalb, its employees, appointed and elected officers, its committees, its attorneys, and all corporate bodies that exist as a subsidiary to the City.

#### 3. Comprehensive General Liability Coverage Requirements.

Unless this Section 3 of Exhibit B is clearly marked out as being inapplicable, Contractor shall also be required to provide the City with a Certificate of Insurance, in a form and from an issuer acceptable to the City, indicating that the Contractor has obtained and maintains comprehensive general liability insurance with policy limits of not less than One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) per person / Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000.00) per occurrence.

#### 4. Automobile Insurance Coverage:

Unless this Section 4 of Exhibit B is clearly marked out as being inapplicable, Contractor shall also be required to provide the City with a Certificate of Insurance, in a form and from an issuer acceptable to the City, indicating that the Contractor has obtained and maintains comprehensive automobile liability insurance with policy limits of not less than One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) per person / Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000.00) per occurrence.

# 5. Professional Liability Insurance Coverage / Errors & Omissions Insurance Coverage:

Unless one or more subsections of this Section 5 of Exhibit B is clearly marked out as being in applicable:

A. Professional Liability / Malpractice: Contractor shall also be required to provide the City with a Certificate of Insurance, in a form and from an issuer acceptable to the City,

indicating that the Contractor has obtained and maintains professional liability or malpractice insurance with policy limits of not less than One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) per person / per occurrence. Said policy need not identify the City as additional primary insured.

- B. Errors & Omissions Insurance Coverage: Contractor shall also be required to provide the City with a Certificate of Insurance, in a form and from an issuer acceptable to the City, indicating that the Contractor has obtained and maintains errors & omissions insurance with policy limits of not less than One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) per person / per occurrence. Said policy need not identify the City as additional primary insured.
- 6. Indemnification.

7.

The policy limits, availability or inavailability of insurance coverage or the applicability of claims, defenses or limitations based upon applicable law (including but not limited to the Illinois Worker's Compensation Act or similar laws or statutes) shall in no way limit the Contractor's obligation to indemnify and hold harmless the City from any claims for damage, liabilities or other costs arising out of or relating to the Contractor's work or this Agreement.

EACH CERTIFICATE OF LIABILTY INSURANCE SHALL REFERENCE THE SPECIFIC BID NUMBER AND PROJECT DESCRIPTION IN THE ADDITIONAL INSURED FIELD, AND MUST BE PROVIDED DIRECTLY TO THE CITY REPRESENTATIVE.

# Exhibit F: Description of "the Work"

Additional Insurance Requirements.

This project consists of the provision of the following Work:

Completion of a Demolition project for the City of DeKalb, as more fully described below. Unless otherwise noted, all services, materials, labor, knowledge, skill, expertise, or other resources required to lawfully complete the Project in accordance with all applicable regulations.

#### Property Address: 1011-1027 W. Hillcrest Drive DeKalb, IL 60115

**Description of Property:** Demolition and cleanup of an approximately 27,620 square foot, two-story, mixed use commercial and residential building. General construction characteristics of the building include wood frame concrete block construction with brick and concrete block exterior and a tarred wooden roof with rubber overlay over a concrete slab below grade foundation. The project also requires the removal of the basement/slab/foundation, backfilling with a compacted material, and grass seeding upon completion. Basement structures are limited to the far west commercial unit of the building located at 1027 W. Hillcrest; remaining units are concrete slab in construction. Parking lot pavement remains on the lot along with concrete sidewalk areas. Parking lot and sidewalks out of the public right of way are to be removed, leveled, and restored to grass.

#### **Demolition Requirements:**

Demolition of the property must commence May 10<sup>th</sup>, 2022. The start date is non-negotiable, equipment may be pre-staged onsite ahead of the May 10<sup>th</sup> start date. Contractor shall provide a demolition schedule showing the timeline for all demolition activities. The timeline will require City approval before work begins.

Contractor's scope of work includes the following:

#### 1. Site Plan

- a. Contractor will engage in pre-demolition meeting with City at the Property.
- b. Contractor will prepare and submit to the City for approval a demolition site plan with all required information.
- c. Site plan shall show north arrow, legend, scale, and benchmark tied to NAVD88 datum.
- d. Where any work is to be performed in City ROW, site plan shall show nature of work to be performed and mechanism of repair of work (e.g., mechanism of street repair for trench cut in street). Site plan shall also show typical sections for street/sidewalk repair, including material thickness, type, and location.
- e. Site plan should show drainage patterns consistent with pre-demolition conditions. Site plan shall also show location of silt fencing.
- f. In the case of any foundations or slabs on the property, site plan shall specify their full removal, and replacement with clean, compacted CA-7 fill in a buildable fashion.

- g. Unless otherwise specified by the City, site plan shall show installation of not less than six inches of topsoil on all excavated areas, and installation of grass seed and appropriate coverage materials.
- h. Site plan shall depict areas where trucks shall access the site, where dumpsters shall be placed, and similar matters. Where site access requires access over a barrier curb, site plan shall show temporary removal of curb and, upon project completion, replacement of barrier curb where removed.
- i. The Contractor shall provide a final, 'as-built' topographical survey showing completion of all activities in accordance with these requirements

#### 2. Permits

a. Contractor will obtain all permits required for the performance of the work, including City demolition permit (provided at no charge), IEPA demolition permits, and similar matters. Contractor will be responsible for costs of all applicable permits other than City permit.

#### 3. Utilities

- a. City shall discontinue and remove water service taps prior to demolition.
- b. All wastewater services shall be disconnected and removed according to the Kishwaukee Reclamation District's specifications. Contractor is responsible for coordination of work with Sanitary District. There are five (5) break in taps to the 8" sanitary main just North of the building.
- c. City shall coordinate the disconnection of the Electric utility with Com Ed. ComEd transformers will remain onsite and must be protected during demolition.
- d. Storm water infrastructure to remain as is.
- e. City shall coordinate the removal and disconnection of the gas utility with Nicor.
- f. Where any drainage tile or storm sewer exists on site, Contractor shall reroute such tile/sewer to maintain it as operational.
- g. Where any site is served by a common utility service that serves a property not being demolished, the Contractor's plans shall provide for the continuation of utility service to such other property.

#### 4. Work Days and Hours

a. The allowed hours of work are between 7:00 AM and 7:00 PM, Monday through Friday, and between 8:00 AM and 5:00 PM on Saturdays. No work shall be done on Sundays or Holidays.

b. Equipment shall not be started before 6:45 AM.

#### 5. Asbestos Removal

a. The Contractor or subcontractor shall be responsible for complying with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders of any public body having jurisdiction for the safe removal of asbestos.

#### 6. Parking Lot

a. Contractors shall removal and haul the parking lot surrounding the property. The restoration will include leveling and grass seeding.

#### 7. Construction Safety. Shoring, and Methods

- a. Contractor shall be responsible for maintaining the site in a reasonably clean and tidy fashion, and for maintaining all public roads and sidewalks in the area of the property in good condition and clean of demolition debris, mud, or stone from the demolition site. Should the contractor fail to do so, the City may clean such debris, and back-charge the cost of performing such services against amounts due to the Contractor.
- b. During time of demolition work, Contractor shall maintain temporary construction fence at least six feet in height around the perimeter of the area of the demolition; all equipment shall be stored *inside* the fenced area.
- c. The Contractor shall at all times be responsible for maintaining dust-free conditions. The Contractor shall clean the pavement of all dirt and debris at the end of each day's operations, and at other times as directed by the Engineer by means of high pressure washing or by mechanical sweeping. The Contractor shall provide for the control of dust as specified in Section 20-2.21C of the "Standard Specifications for Water and Sewer Construction in Illinois," or by the uniform application of a dust control agent approved by the Engineer.
- d. If the Contractor does not meet the requirement of controlling dust and/or cleaning the pavement, within three (3) hours of notification by the Owner, the Owner shall make the necessary arrangements to control the dust and clean the pavement(s). The cost of such action will be deducted from any monies due or to become due to the Contractor. Additionally, the City will deduct \$500.00 per day from monies due, or to become due, for each day that the Contractor fails to comply with this special provision. In addition, the Contractor will pay any penalties resulting from any Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, NPDES for Construction violations issued to the Owner. Such sum to be charged not as a penalty but as liquidated damages. The parties agreeing that actual damages to the City of DeKalb would be uncertain and difficult to calculate and the amount of such liquidated damages is a reasonable

estimate of the supervision costs likely to be incurred by the City of DeKalb as a result of the Contractors failure to control dust and clean the pavement(s) as required. Dust control and pavement cleaning shall be considered incidental to the cost of the contract and will not be paid for separately.

- e. The City shall provide a courtesy water source prior to the start of any excavation.
- f. Contractor shall remove all portions of the building and foundation, and all real or personal property located therein, inclusive of the foundation, pads, footings, sidewalk approaches, or other similar structures in accordance with the approved demolition site plan.
- g. Contractor shall install clean compacted CA-7 fill, and 6-inch topsoil, in accordance with the site plan, and be responsible for watering and maintenance of such seed until a healthy stand of grass is established as required by IEPA ILR 10 permit.
- h. Contractor shall remove and lawfully dispose of all debris generated by the demolition activities, and shall provide all materials (e.g. fill, soil, seed, water) necessary to complete the demolition process in accordance with this Agreement. Contractor shall remove and dispose of all real or personal property located on the Property in accordance with this Agreement, and unless notified otherwise by the City, shall remove all fences, trees, accessory structures, driveways, parking areas, or other structures or items from the Property, restoring the same to a graded, seeded, clear condition. The City reserves the right to specify that any item currently residing on the Property remains on the Property (e.g. tree preservation).
- Contractor shall be solely responsible for repair or restoration of any damage caused by Contractor to public or private property in the completion of the work outlined herein.
- 8. Unless otherwise approved as an alternate bid, the Contractor shall be paid 90% of the total contract price at the time that the City certifies that the demolition/restoration/utility disconnection process has been completed (exclusive of the successful installation of grass seed), and 10% of the total contract price at the time that the City certifies that the grass seed has met standards. In the event that the Contractor fails to perform any service contemplated herein after the provision of ten days' notice to perform, the City may: a) withhold funds from the Contractor sufficient to have such service(s) performed; and/or, b) initiate legal action to collect the costs of such service(s) from Contractor

Exhibit G: Project Checklist

|  | Yes | No |
|--|-----|----|
| Attended Pre-Bid Meeting   |     |    |
| Timely Submitted Bid   |     |    |
| Bid Sealed and Properly Labeled  |     |    |
| All Pages Submitted  |     |    |
| Bid Bond Required?   |     |    |
| Bid Bond Submitted   |     |    |
| Date of Bid Opening:   |     |    |
| Date of Bid Award:   |     |    |
| Selected Bidder:   |     |    |
| Date of Bidder Notification:   |     |    |
| Selected Bidder Acknowledged Bid Award (Date:)                                       |     |    |
| Subcontractors identified and authorized   |     |    |
| Contract Signature:  |     |    |
| Bidder Provided Signed Contract within 5 days  |     |    |
| Pre-Performance Items:   |     |    |
| Performance Security Required?   |     |    |
| Performance Security Provided (prior to start of work)                               |     |    |
| Certificates of Insurance Provided (prior to start of work)                          |     |    |
| Pre-Performance/Pre-Delivery Meeting Conducted                                       |     |    |
| Pre-Payment Items:   |     |    |
| Lien Waivers Received  |     |    |
| Prevailing Wage Records Received   |     |    |
| City Punchlist Approval Received   |     |    |
| Warranty, Retention or Maintenance Bond Required?                                    |     |    |
| Warranty, Retention or Maintenance Bond Received                                     |     |    |
| Warranty, Retention or Maintenance Bond Period Close Reminder Docketed? <sup>1</sup> |     |    |

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> It is recommended to docket a reminder for this deadline at least 60 days prior to the deadline.

Warranty/Retention/Maintenance Bond Instructions:

## **Exhibit H: Subcontractor Listing**

Any subcontractors that are proposed to be utilized in the performance of this Agreement, either as subcontractors or materialmen, shall be expressly identified below. Attach additional pages if necessary.

#1:

Subcontractor or Materialman Name: DEC FENCE INC.

Address: 4901 W, STATE ST, ROCKFORD, IL WIOZ-Telephone Number: 815 96 2 - 34 55 Email Address: adaca & daca femceco. com Primary Contact Person: ADAM DACA

Primary Contact Cellular Telephone: 375 376 23 257

Attach a List of Five References for Subcontractor (See Section 3.13):

Detailed description of services to be offered by this Subcontractor or Materialman:

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION FENCE RENAL

#2:

Subcontractor or Materialman Name:

Address:

**Telephone Number:** 

**Email Address:** 

**Primary Contact Person:** 

**Primary Contact Cellular Telephone:** 

Attach a List of Five References for Subcontractor (See Section 3.13):

Detailed description of services to be offered by this Subcontractor or Materialman:

#### List of Trade Ref for Dach Fence

City of Rockford

**Rockford Public Schools #205** 

**Rockford Park District** 

Harlem School district

**Byron Forest Preserve** 

Warranty/Retention/Maintenance Bond Instructions:

## **Exhibit H: Subcontractor Listing**

Any subcontractors that are proposed to be utilized in the performance of this Agreement, either as subcontractors or materialmen, shall be expressly identified below. Attach additional pages if necessary.

#1:

Subcontractor or Materialman Name: Foss Landscapes, Inc.
Address: 1218 Shappert Drive Machesney Park, It 6/115
Telephone Number: 815.636-4748
Email Address: Fossland scapes a) Sbcglobal.net
Primary Contact Person: Ron Foss
Primary Contact Cellular Telephone: 815.220.220

Primary Contact Cellular Telephone: 815 - 378 - 0955Attach a List of Five References for Subcontractor (See Section 3.13):

Detailed description of services to be offered by this Subcontractor or Materialman:

Install 6" tysuil, seed, and blunket to the areas needing resturation (Hillcrest Dr. Dekalb).

#2:

Subcontractor or Materialman Name:

Address:

**Telephone Number:** 

**Email Address:** 

**Primary Contact Person:** 

**Primary Contact Cellular Telephone:** 

Attach a List of Five References for Subcontractor (See Section 3.13):

Detailed description of services to be offered by this Subcontractor or Materialman:

# Foss Landscapes, Inc.

#### Five References for Subcontractor:

William Charles Construction - 833 Featherstone Rd (815-654-4700)

Stenstrom Excavation – 2422 Center Street (815-398-3478)

Rock Roads - 301 W. B.R. Townline Rd, Janesville, WI (608-365-1113)

Northern Illinois Services - 4781 Sandy Hollow Rd. (815-874-4422)

Scandroli Construction - 855 N. Madison St. (815-962-4037)



218 Shappert Dr. Machesney Park, IL 61115

## **Exhibit D: Form of Agreement**

## **Independent Contractor Agreement for Services**

THIS AGREEMENT, by and between the City of DeKalb, hereinafter referred to as the "City" and "Northern Illinois Service Cd" hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor", with the City and Contractor agreeing as follows

#### A. Services:

Contractor agrees to furnish to the City the following services:

Contractor represents that it possesses the skills and knowledge necessary to provide all such services and understands that the City is relying upon such representation. Contractor further acknowledges that Exhibit A is an integral part of this Agreement and may not be modified except in accordance with a modification to the terms of this Agreement.

#### B. Term:

Services will be provided as needed and directed by the City beginning on the date of execution of this agreement and continuing, until terminated by either party upon 7 days written notice to the non-terminating party. Upon termination the Contractor shall be compensated for all work performed for the City prior to termination and shall provide to the City all work completed through the date of termination. The City's issuance of a notice of termination shall function as a stop work order, beyond which the Contractor shall not incur any additional costs without the City's express, written permission.

#### C. Compensation:

Contractor shall receive as compensation for all work and services to be performed herein, an amount based on the fee schedule attached hereto as Exhibit XX. All payments will be made according to the Illinois State Prompt Payment Act.

Any payment made to the Contractor shall be strictly on the basis of quantum meruit. The Contractor shall submit to the City a detailed breakdown and invoice of all charges, including detail of past payments and amounts still remaining due, accurate to the date of the invoice, with each request for payment. Any additions to or deductions from the approved total amount of the contract, and any out of scope work shall require prior, written approval from the City. Any work performed without the City's express, written consent shall be solely at the expense of the Contractor.

#### G. Independent Contractor:

Contractor shall have sole control over the manner and means of providing the work and services performed under this agreement. The City's relationship to the Contractor under this agreement shall be that of an independent contractor. Contractor will not be considered an employee to the City for any purpose. The parties agree that the Contractor is exclusively responsible for the determination of what work is required to complete the tasks outlined in Exhibit XX, and for the means and methods of completing such work. The City's compensation to Contractor shall be limited to that described in Exhibit XX, and the City shall not reimburse any expenses, provide any benefits, withhold any employment taxes, or otherwise have a financial relationship with Contractor other than payment of the stated compensation. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for withholding of taxes, providing employee benefits, or otherwise complying with applicable laws relating to its employees or contractors.

In the event that the City determines, in its sole discretion, that it is economically advantageous for the City to provide certain supplies or tools for use by Contractor in lieu of paying Contractor to provide the same, the City and Contractor agree that Contractor shall then utilize the City's equipment or supplies according to its own determination of their best and appropriate use. Contractor shall be responsible for its' own personnel, training, instruction, and related matters. Contractor shall be responsible for determining its sequence of performance for required work. Contractor's work shall be evaluated by the City based upon the end result of such work. Contractor shall be responsible for any expenses incurred by Contractor in the performance of its work, and shall not be authorized, expressly or impliedly, to obligate the City on any debt, contract, or other agreement whatsoever. In the event that Contractor is compensated on an hourly basis under the terms of this Agreement, the City and Contractor agree that Contractor's compensation is usual and customary, based on the terms that Contractor offers its services to the market in general.

The Contractor acknowledges that neither it nor its personnel shall be acting as an employee or official representative of the City for purposes of being offered any protection or coverage under City insurance policies for tort immunity or other legal purposes.

#### H. Certifications:

Executing this Agreement constitutes acknowledgment, acceptance, and certification of the accuracy of the following certifications, and any other certifications required under any applicable law relating to the performance of this Agreement. The Contractor is responsible for identifying all such applicable regulations and certifications, and for compliance with the same.

Sexual Harassment: The Contractor certifies that it is in compliance with the Illinois Human Rights Act 775 ILCS 5/1.101, et seq. including establishment and maintenance of sexual harassment policies and program.

maintains a substance-abuse program and provide drug testing in accordance with 820 ILCS 130/11G, Public Act 0950635

Responsible Contractor Requirements: The Contractor certifies that it complies with the Illinois Procurement Code and the provisions of Section 30-22 thereof relating to apprenticeship and training, if applicable.

Non-Discrimination, Certification, and Equal Employment Opportunity: The Contractor agrees to comply with applicable provisions of the Illinois Human Rights Act (775 Illinois Compiled Statutes 5), the U.S. Civil Rights Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act, Section 504 of the U.S. Rehabilitation Act and the rules applicable to each. The equal opportunity clause of Section 750.10 of the Illinois Department of Human Rights Rules is specifically incorporated herein. The Contractor shall comply with Executive Order 11246, entitled Equal Employment Opportunity, as amended by Executive Order 11375, and as supplemented by U.S. Department of Labor regulations (41 C.F.R. Chapter 60). The Contractor agrees to incorporate this clause into all subcontracts under this Contract. The Contractor acknowledges that neither it nor the City shall discriminate on the basis of any protected classification.

Record Retention and Audits: If 30 ILCS 500/20-65 requires the Contractor (and any subcontractors) to maintain, for a period of 3 years after the later of the date of completion of this Contract or the date of final payment under the Contract, all books and records relating to the performance of the Contract and necessary to support amounts charged to the City under the Contract. The Contract and all books and records related to the Contract shall be available for review and audit by the City and the Illinois Auditor General. If this Contract is funded from contract/grant funds provided by the U.S. Government, the Contract, books, and records shall be available for review and audit by the Comptroller General of the U.S. and/or the Inspector General of the federal sponsoring agency. The Contractor agrees to cooperate fully with any audit and to provide full access to all relevant materials.

United States Resident Certification: (This certification must be included in all contracts involving personal services by non-resident aliens and foreign entities in accordance with requirements imposed by the Internal Revenue Services for withholding and reporting federal income taxes.) The Contractor certifies that he/she/it is a: 

United

States Citizen or Corporation 

Resident Alien 

Non-Resident Alien. The Internal Revenue Service requires that taxes be withheld on payments made to non-resident aliens for the performance of personal services at the rate of 30%.

| Tax Payer Certification: Under penalties of perjury, the Contractor certifies that its Federal |
|--|
| Tax Payer Identification Number or Social Security Number is 36-2705205 and is doing           |
| business as a (check one): □ Individual □ Real Estate Agent □ Sole                             |
| Proprietorship ☐ Government Entity ☐ Partnership ☐ Tax Exempt Organization (IRC 501(a)         |
| only)   Corporation □ Not for Profit Corporation □ Trust or Estate □ Medical and Health Care   |
| Services Provider Corp.  |

persons, resulting directly or indirectly from the work covered by this contract or the equipment used in connection therewith. It is understood that this agreement shall apply to any and all such claims whether resulting from the negligence or the intentional acts of the Contractor, the Contractor's employees, contractors or subcontractors, the City, or City Indemnitees or otherwise, with the single exception of any claim, damage, loss, or expense arising solely out of the intentional misconduct of the City or City Indemnitees. The Contractor is solely responsible for determining the accuracy and validity of any information provided to the Contractor by the City or its representatives. This indemnification shall apply to the fullest extent of the law, and in the event that any provision hereof is determined to be unenforceable, the indemnification obligations shall be severable and the fullest extent of indemnification that may lawfully apply shall remain in full force and effect.

This indemnification shall include any claims arising out of the erection, construction, placement or operation of any scaffold, hoist, crane, stay, ladders, support, or other mechanical contrivance in connection with such work including but not limited to losses, claims, damages, and expenses arising pursuant to claims asserted against the City pursuant to theories premised upon Section 414 or Section 343 of the Restatement (Second) of Torts. This indemnification shall not be limited in any way by limitations on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Contractor under Workers' Compensation Acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts, and serves as an express agreement to waive the protection of *Kotecki v. Cyclops Welding Corp*, 146 Ill.2d 155 (1991) in Illinois.

## J. Insurance, Licensure, and Intellectual Property:

The Contractor shall comply with all insurance requirements described on the attached Exhibit C. The Contractor agrees and warrants that it has procured all licenses, permits or other official permissions required by any applicable law to perform the services contemplated herein, that it will procure all additional licenses, permits or other official permissions hereafter required by law during the term of this Agreement, and that it will keep all such licenses in effect during the term of this Agreement. The Contractor shall provide a copy of any such licenses or permits upon request. All such insurance and licensure shall be provided at the Contractor's sole expense. Contractor also warrants that it has complete ownership or authorization/entitlement to any intellectual property, software, images, or other such items used in the performance of its work under this Agreement, and that it shall transfer to the City, unrestricted, the ability to modify, amend, publicize or otherwise utilize any intellectual property provided to the City under this Agreement unless the City expressly preapproves in writing a limitation to these provisions.

The Contractor shall not commence work under this Contract until they have obtained all insurance required and such insurance has been submitted to and approved by the City, nor shall the Contractor permit any Subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until the same insurance has been obtained by the Subcontractor. The Company and all Subcontractors shall maintain their insurance in place for not less than two (2) years following completion of all work required under this Contract.

Contractor shall not assign or subcontract for the performance of any obligation under this Agreement, except with the express, written preapproval of the City, which consent may be withheld in the City's sole and absolute discretion. Should Contractor assign any obligation arising under this Agreement with the consent of the City, the Contractor shall remain to be primarily liable to the City for the performance of the obligation in question, and further shall be liable for ensuring that the subcontractor(s) comply with all obligations arising under this Agreement as if the subcontractor(s) was/were the Contractor itself. Further, should Contractor request to assign the performance of any obligation arising hereunder to a subcontractor, Contractor expressly provides its consent to the City contracting directly with such proposed subcontractor (or another subcontractor acceptable to the City) for the performance of such work, and to the amendment of this Agreement to reduce the scope and cost accordingly.

Nothing contained in this Agreement, nor the performance of the parties hereunder, is intended to benefit, nor shall it inure to the benefit of any third party.

## .N. Progress Reports:

Contractor shall report to the City Manager or her designee, and shall submit written progress reports identifying, in detail, the extent of work completed, the percentage of project completion, and project status, accompanying any invoice submitted to the City. Contractor shall also provide additional written or verbal progress reports to the City upon request, at any time, without additional charge. The Contractor shall attend conferences and visit the site of the work as may be outlined in the Request for Proposal and at any reasonable time when requested to do so by the City, at no additional charge.

Agreed to this 2022

City of DeKalb

**∤**Manager

Contractor

City

POUL MUNION PROTECT MGR.

# **Exhibit E: Insurance Requirements:**

#### 1. All Contractors and All Contracts.

Evecutie

Contractor shall provide any and all insurance required under any applicable law, regulation, statute, or ordinance, including but not limited to workers' compensation insurance, unemployment insurance, automobile liability insurance and other legally required insurance.

indicating that the Contractor has obtained and maintains professional liability or malpractice insurance with policy limits of not less than One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) per person / per occurrence. Said policy need not identify the City as additional primary insured.

- B. Errors & Omissions Insurance Coverage: Contractor shall also be required to provide the City with a Certificate of Insurance, in a form and from an issuer acceptable to the City, indicating that the Contractor has obtained and maintains errors & omissions insurance with policy limits of not less than One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) per person / per occurrence. Said policy need not identify the City as additional primary insured.
- 6. Indemnification.

7.

The policy limits, availability or inavailability of insurance coverage or the applicability of claims, defenses or limitations based upon applicable law (including but not limited to the Illinois Worker's Compensation Act or similar laws or statutes) shall in no way limit the Contractor's obligation to indemnify and hold harmless the City from any claims for damage, liabilities or other costs arising out of or relating to the Contractor's work or this Agreement.

| actor shall also be required |  |  |
|------------------------------|--|--|
|                              |  |  |
|                              |  |  |
|                              |  |  |
|                              |  |  |

EACH CERTIFICATE OF LIABILTY INSURANCE SHALL REFERENCE THE SPECIFIC BID NUMBER AND PROJECT DESCRIPTION IN THE ADDITIONAL INSURED FIELD, AND MUST BE PROVIDED DIRECTLY TO THE CITY REPRESENTATIVE.

# Exhibit F: Description of "the Work"

Additional Insurance Requirements.

This project consists of the provision of the following Work:

Completion of a Demolition project for the City of DeKalb, as more fully described below. Unless otherwise noted, all services, materials, labor, knowledge, skill, expertise, or other resources required to lawfully complete the Project in accordance with all applicable regulations.

- g. Unless otherwise specified by the City, site plan shall show installation of not less than six inches of topsoil on all excavated areas, and installation of grass seed and appropriate coverage materials.
- h. Site plan shall depict areas where trucks shall access the site, where dumpsters shall be placed, and similar matters. Where site access requires access over a barrier curb, site plan shall show temporary removal of curb and, upon project completion, replacement of barrier curb where removed.
- i. The Contractor shall provide a final, 'as-built' topographical survey showing completion of all activities in accordance with these requirements

#### 2. Permits

a. Contractor will obtain all permits required for the performance of the work, including City demolition permit (provided at no charge), IEPA demolition permits, and similar matters. Contractor will be responsible for costs of all applicable permits other than City permit.

#### 3. Utilities

- a. City shall discontinue and remove water service taps prior to demolition.
- b. All wastewater services shall be disconnected and removed according to the Kishwaukee Reclamation District's specifications. Contractor is responsible for coordination of work with Sanitary District. There are five (5) break in taps to the 8" sanitary main just North of the building.
- c. City shall coordinate the disconnection of the Electric utility with Com Ed. ComEd transformers will remain onsite and must be protected during demolition.
- d. Storm water infrastructure to remain as is.
- e. City shall coordinate the removal and disconnection of the gas utility with Nicor.
- f. Where any drainage tile or storm sewer exists on site, Contractor shall reroute such tile/sewer to maintain it as operational.
- g. Where any site is served by a common utility service that serves a property not being demolished, the Contractor's plans shall provide for the continuation of utility service to such other property.

#### 4. Work Days and Hours

a. The allowed hours of work are between 7:00 AM and 7:00 PM, Monday through Friday, and between 8:00 AM and 5:00 PM on Saturdays. No work shall be done on Sundays or Holidays.

estimate of the supervision costs likely to be incurred by the City of DeKalb as a result of the Contractors failure to control dust and clean the pavement(s) as required. Dust control and pavement cleaning shall be considered incidental to the cost of the contract and will not be paid for separately.

- e. The City shall provide a courtesy water source prior to the start of any excavation.
- f. Contractor shall remove all portions of the building and foundation, and all real or personal property located therein, inclusive of the foundation, pads, footings, sidewalk approaches, or other similar structures in accordance with the approved demolition site plan.
- g. Contractor shall install clean compacted CA-7 fill, and 6-inch topsoil, in accordance with the site plan, and be responsible for watering and maintenance of such seed until a healthy stand of grass is established as required by IEPA ILR 10 permit.
- h. Contractor shall remove and lawfully dispose of all debris generated by the demolition activities, and shall provide all materials (e.g. fill, soil, seed, water) necessary to complete the demolition process in accordance with this Agreement. Contractor shall remove and dispose of all real or personal property located on the Property in accordance with this Agreement, and unless notified otherwise by the City, shall remove all fences, trees, accessory structures, driveways, parking areas, or other structures or items from the Property, restoring the same to a graded, seeded, clear condition. The City reserves the right to specify that any item currently residing on the Property remains on the Property (e.g. tree preservation).
- i. Contractor shall be solely responsible for repair or restoration of any damage caused by Contractor to public or private property in the completion of the work outlined herein.
- 8. Unless otherwise approved as an alternate bid, the Contractor shall be paid 90% of the total contract price at the time that the City certifies that the demolition/restoration/utility disconnection process has been completed (exclusive of the successful installation of grass seed), and 10% of the total contract price at the time that the City certifies that the grass seed has met standards. In the event that the Contractor fails to perform any service contemplated herein after the provision of ten days' notice to perform, the City may: a) withhold funds from the Contractor sufficient to have such service(s) performed; and/or, b) initiate legal action to collect the costs of such service(s) from Contractor

Warranty/Retention/Maintenance Bond Instructions:

#### **Exhibit H: Subcontractor Listing**

Any subcontractors that are proposed to be utilized in the performance of this Agreement, either as subcontractors or materialmen, shall be expressly identified below. Attach additional pages if necessary.

#1:

Subcontractor or Materialman Name: DFC FENCE INC.

Address: 4901 W, STATE ST, ROCKFORD, IL WIOZ-Telephone Number: 815962-3455 Email Address: adaca@ daca@enceco.com

Primary Contact Person: 404741 DACH

Primary Contact Cellular Telephone: 315 576 23 25

Attach a List of Five References for Subcontractor (See Section 3.13):

Detailed description of services to be offered by this Subcontractor or Materialman:

TEMPOSODY CONSTRUCTION FENCE RENTAL

#2:

Subcontractor or Materialman Name:

Address:

**Telephone Number:** 

**Email Address:** 

**Primary Contact Person:** 

Primary Contact Cellular Telephone:

Attach a List of Five References for Subcontractor (See Section 3.13):

Detailed description of services to be offered by this Subcontractor or Materialman:

Warranty/Retention/Maintenance Bond Instructions:

## Exhibit H: Subcontractor Listing

Any subcontractors that are proposed to be utilized in the performance of this Agreement, either as subcontractors or materialmen, shall be expressly identified below. Attach additional pages if necessary.

#1:

Subcontractor or Materialman Name: Foss Landscapes, Inc. Address: 1218 Shappert Drive Machesney Park, It 61115 Telephone Number: 815.636-4748

Email Address: fossiand scapes a Sbeglobal net Primary Contact Person: Ron Foss Primary Contact Cellular Telephone: 815 - 378-0955 Attach a List of Five References for Subcontractor (See Section 3.13):

Detailed description of services to be offered by this Subcontractor or Materialman:

Install 6" typsuil, seed, and blunket to the areas needing restoration (HINCIPST Dr. Dekalb).

#2:

Subcontractor or Materialman Name:

Address:

**Telephone Number:** 

**Email Address:** 

**Primary Contact Person:** 

**Primary Contact Cellular Telephone:** 

Attach a List of Five References for Subcontractor (See Section 3.13):

Detailed description of services to be offered by this Subcontractor or Materialman:

# **Exhibit I: City Punchlist and Acceptance Notice**

Prior to final payment for project, this document shall be completed to identify: 1) any punch list or corrective items identified that must be completed prior to final payment; and, 2) completion of all such items and approval, by the City Representative, of this project for final payment.

Punchlist items for correction:

| Item Description | Date Corrected and Approved by City Representative |
|------------------|--|
|                  |  |
|                  |  |
|                  |  |
|                  |  |
|                  |  |
|                  |  |
|                  |  |
|                  |  |
|                  |  |
|                  |  |
|                  |  |
|                  |  |
|                  |  |
|                  |  |
| <u> </u>         |  |
|                  |  |
|                  |  |

| Date of Punchlist Item Completion and Project Completion:                                     |
|---|
| (Note: the following day shall serve as the first day of the warranty period for this project |

| City Representative Certification                                    | :  |  |
|--|--|--|
| Work, as defined therein, has been Documents, that as of the date of | en completed in accordanc<br>f this Certification, all ident | nis project and determined that the<br>e with the requirements of the Contract<br>ified punch list items have been<br>ject is otherwise ready for final payout.    |
| Signature  | Date   |  |
| Contractor Certification:  |  |  |
| the Work, as defined therein, has Contract Documents, that as of th  | s been completed in accord<br>he date of this Certification  | viewed this project and determined that<br>lance with the requirements of the<br>, all identified punch list items have<br>hat this project is otherwise ready for |
| Signature  | Date   |  |



164 East Lincoln Highway

DeKalb, Illinois 60115

815.748.2000 • cityofdekalb.com

## City of DeKalb RFP for 1011-1027 W. Hillcrest Demolition Proposer Question Responses

Potential bidders had the opportunity to ask the City of DeKalb questions regarding the 1011-1027 W. Hillcrest Demolition RFP. Below is a list of questions and answers. Questions are indicated by number and the corresponding answers are indicated in red text.

- 1. Are the Sanitary Sewers to be disconnected by the Contractor?
  - a. Please see Exhibit F: (#3) All wastewater services shall be disconnected and removed according to the Kishwaukee Reclamation District's specifications. Contractor is responsible for coordination of work with Sanitary District. There are five (5) break in taps to the 8" sanitary main just North of the building.
- 2. Is the parking lot to be removed as part of the project?
  - Please see Exhibit F: (#6) Contractors shall remove and haul away the parking lot surrounding the property. The restoration will include leveling and grass seeding.
- 3. Are the two aprons from Hillcrest Dr. to be removed?
  - c. The two entry aprons from Hillcrest Dr. are to be left as is and protected during Demolition Operations. Any damage to the aprons shall be remediated at the sole expense of the Contractor.
- 4. I there any asbestos in the building?
  - d. All asbestos is to be removed prior to building demolition and is not included in the RFP.
- 5. Will a six-foot temporary fence be needed to secure the property during demolition activities?
  - e. Yes
- 6. What is the start date of the demolition?
  - f. Please see Exhibit F: Demolition Requirements: Demolition of the property must commence May 10th, 2022. The start date is non-negotiable, equipment may be pre-

staged onsite ahead of the May 10th start date. Contractor shall provide a demolition schedule showing the timeline for all demolition activities. The timeline will require City approval before work begins.

- 7. I exterior litter removal the responsibility of the Contractor?
  - g. No, routine litter operations will be the responsibility of the Public Works Division.
- 8. Are the rafters and joists made of wood?

5 1 3 8

- h. It is believed to be wood frame construction with brick and concrete block exterior.
- 9. Can concrete and asphalt be crushed on-site?
  - Yes, concrete can be crushed to 2" minus in size and asphalt is to be crushed to ¾" minus.
- 10. Can crushed concrete and asphalt be spread on adjacent City of DeKalb owned lot?
  - j. Yes, concrete is to be distributed evenly on the adjacent City owned lot. Concrete is to be free of rebar, woven wire and metal materials. Asphalt can be stockpiled for relocation and use to be used by the City of DeKalb Public Works Department.
- 11. Can concrete and asphalt be mixed together on the adjacent City of DeKalb owned lot?
  - k. No, all crushed material must stay separated. Any combined or mixed material shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to separate or remove from site at the sole expense of said Contractor.
- 12. Does the strip mall sign at the southwest corner of the property need to be removed as part of the demolition project?
  - The above-mentioned sign as well as parking lot light poles will be removed by the City
    of DeKalb prior to demolition. Remaining foundations, pedestals, and footings to be
    removed by the Contractor.





4781 Sandy Hollow Road · Rockford, Illinois 61109 Phone: (815) 874-4422 · Fax: (815) 874-1944 · www.northernillinoisservice.com

## **Recent Typical Completed Projects / References**

Project Name: 21017 – Pecatonica Middle School Pavement Improvements

Project Type: Public / Municipal - Parking Lot Reconstruction and Expansion

Project Value: \$746,263.60

Completion: 2021

3.48 5

Contact: Richard L. Johnson Associates – District Architect

Scott Johnson, Principal Phone: 815-398-1231 sjohnson@rljarch.com

Project Name: 21019 - Christina St. Reconstruction Phase 2

Project Type: Public / Municipal – Street reconstruction

Project Value: \$541,025.16

Completion: 2021

Contact: City of Rockford Dept. of Public Works Engineering

Ryan Lundberg, P.M. Phone: 779-348-7644 Ryan.lundberg@rockfordil.gov

Project Name: 20046 – 2020-2021 Service Cleanout Installations, CP #2101

Project Type: Public / Municipal – Utility, Sanitary Sewer Replacement

Project Value: \$567,380.00

Completion: 2020

Contact: Four Rivers Sanitation Authority (Rock River Water Reclamation Dist.)

Matt Campbell, Senior Civil Engineer-PM Phone: 815-387-7684

mcampbell@fourrivers.illinois.gov

Project Name: 20114 - Senator Midfield Cargo Site at Greater Rockford Airport

Project Type: Private – Earthwork / Building Site Development / Utility Install

Project Value: \$1,027,495.72

Completion: 2020

Contact: Scandroli Construction

Joe Scandroli, President Phone: 815-962-4037 joe.scandroli@scandroliconstruction.com

Joo.soundi on (@soundi on constitution.com

Project Name: 19002 – Demolition of White Swan Elementary School

Project Type: Public / Municipal – Demolition and Site Restoration

Project Value: \$193,664.38

Completion: 2019

Contact: Richard L. Johnson Associates – District Architect

Dick Johnson, Principal Phone: 815-398-1231 djohnson@rljarch.com

Project Name: 19064 - Hennig Building Addition - Machesney Park, IL

Project Type: Private – Mass Earthwork / Building Sitework / Site Utility

Project Value: \$994,331.00

Completion: 2020

Contact: Cord Construction Co. – General Contractor

Jake Dykstra, President Phone: 815-985-3664 jdykstra@cordconstruction.com

| 1011-1027 W. HILLCREST 04/11/2022 11:00A   | V          |          |            | ļ               |                     |              |
|--|------------|----------|------------|-----------------|---------------------|--------------|
| COMPANY  | BID PACKET | BOND     | REFERENCES | DEMOLITION      | PARKING LOT REMOVAL | TOTAL        |
| N Trak Group   | <b>√</b>   | <b>✓</b> | 1          | \$ 225, 450,00  | \$ 75,000, 00       | \$ 300, 450, |
| American Demolition Corp.  | <b>/</b>   | <b>/</b> | <b>√</b>   | \$ 210, 708, 65 | \$ 157, 413.        | \$ 368, 122. |
| Northern Illinois Services   | <b>(</b>   | 1        | <b>\</b>   | \$ 171,160,00   | \$ 88,382.00        | \$ 237,883   |
| Copenhaver Construction inc.   | NO         | 1        | NO         |                 |                     |              |
| McDonagh Demolition  | <b>/</b>   | <b>✓</b> | <b>/</b>   | \$ 254,000,00   | \$ 73,000.00        | \$ 327,000,  |
| Alpine Demolition Services   | 1          | <b>/</b> | /          | \$ 254,000.00   | \$ 112,300.00       | \$ 366,300,0 |
| Anthem Excavation Demolition   | ND         | <b>/</b> | NO         |                 |                     |              |
|  |            |          |            |                 |                     |              |
| The Analysis and A |            |          |            |                 |                     |              |
|  |            |          |            |                 |                     |              |
|  |            |          |            |                 |                     |              |
| 3  |            |          |            |                 |                     |              |

